From:
 Meacham, Bob

 To:
 EGLE-ROP

Subject: B1909 - ROP Renewal Application Part 1 **Date:** Thursday, June 22, 2023 12:01:04 PM

Attachments: ROP Renewal Application CWC B1909 - 2023.pdf

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

Best regards,

Robert Meacham

Sr. Eng Envir & Facilities CWC

Kautex Textron, CWC Division 1085 W. Sherman Boulevard Muskegon, MI, 49441 www.kautex.com

Office: 231/739-2794 Fax: 231/739-2649

Email: bob.meacham@kautex.com

DRIVING THE FUTURE



Follow us on:









 From:
 Meacham, Bob

 To:
 EGLE-ROP

Subject: B1909 - ROP Renewal Application Part Mark-up, Parts 2 and Part 3

Date: Thursday, June 22, 2023 12:16:36 PM

Attachments: B1909 ROP-MARK-UP.docx

ROP Renewal Application CWC B1909 - 2023 Part 2.pdf ROP Renewal Application CWC B1909 - 2023 part 3.pdf

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

Best regards,

Robert Meacham

Sr. Eng Envir & Facilities CWC

Kautex Textron, CWC Division 1085 W. Sherman Boulevard Muskegon, MI, 49441 www.kautex.com

Office: 231/739-2794 Fax: 231/739-2649

Email: bob.meacham@kautex.com

DRIVING THE FUTURE





Follow us on:









EGLE

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT RENEWAL APPLICATION FORM

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete the Renewable Operating Permit Renewal Application Form.

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

This application form should be submitted as part of an administratively complete application package for renewal of a Renewable Operating Permit (ROP). This application form consists of nine parts. Parts A – H must be completed for all applications and must also be completed for each section of a sectioned ROP. Answer all questions in all parts of the form unless directed otherwise. Detailed instructions for this application form can be found at http://michigan.gov/air (select the Permits Tab, "Renewable Operating Permits (ROP)/Title V", then "ROP Forms & Templates").

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

Enter information about the source, owner, contact person and the responsible official.

SOURCE INFO	CIVIATION						
SRN	SIC Code	NAICS Cod	е	Existing ROP Number	er	Section Nu	mber (if applicable)
B1909	3321	331511		MI-ROP-B1909-			meer (ii applicable)
Source Name		•					
CWC TEXTRO	١						
Street Address							
1085 WEST SH	ERMAN BOU	LEVARD					
City		S	state	ZIP Code	County		
MUSKEGON		1	MI	49441	MUSKEGON	•	
Section/Town/Range	(if address not av	vailable)					
Source Description							9
GRAY AND DUC	CTILE IRON F	OUNDRY PR	RODUCI	NG OEM AND AF	TERMARKET PAR	RTS FOR IN	TERNAL
COMBUSTION E	INGINES						
01 11 11							
on the market	any of the abo	ove informatio	on is diff	erent than what a	opears in the existi	ng ROP. Ide	entify any changes
on the market	a-up copy or y	our existing F	KOP.				
OWNER INFORM	TATION						
Owner Name						Section Nur	mhor (if i' - 11)
CWC TEXTRON						Section Nul	mber (if applicable)
Mailing address (⊠ cl	neck if same as se	ource address)					
		,					
City		St	ate	ZIP Code	County		Country
							Country
Check here	if any informat	tion in this RC)P rene	wal application is	confidential. Confi	dontial !-f-	
L identified as	an Additional			wai application is	comidential. Confi	Jentiai intorr	nation should be

For Assistance Contact: 800-662-9278

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):
------------	---------------------------------

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)
At least one contact and responsible official must be identified. Additional contacts and responsible officials may be included if necessary.

Contact 1 Name			Title			
ROBERT MEACHAM		SR. ENVIRONMENTAL & FACILITY ENGINEER				
Company Name & Mailing address	(⊠ check if same as	source addres	ss)			
City	State	ZIP Code	e	County	Country	
				,	Country	
Phone number		E-mail ad	ddress			
231-739-2794				1@KAUTEX.TE	XTRON.COM	
Contact 2 Name (optional)			Title			
			Title			
Company Name & Mailing address (I	check if same as	source addres	s)			
			•			
City	State	ZIP Cod	le	County	Country	
Phone number						
Tions named		E-mail a	E-mail address			
RESPONSIBLE OFFICIAL IN	EODMATION					
Responsible Official 1 Name	PORIVIATION		Title			
JAMES WRIGHT			V.P. CW	/C		
ompany Name & Mailing address (D	check if same as s	ource address				
ity						
ny	State	ZIP Code	9	County	Country	
none number		E-mail ad	ldress			
31-739-2761		1	IES.WRIGHT@KAUTEX.TEXTRON.COM			
				(S. 0.10 / LX. 1 L	ATTON.COM	
esponsible Official 2 Name (optional)		Title			
OBERT MEACHAM			SR. ENVI	RONMENTAL 8	& FACILITY ENGINEER	
mpany Name & Mailing address (🛛	check if same as so	urce address)				
,						
у	State	ZIP Code		Carmer		
	State	ZIP Code		County	Country	
y one number	State			County	Country	
у	State	E-mail add	dress	@KAUTEX.TEX		

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):
------------	---------------------------------

PART B: APPLICATION SUBMITTAL and CERTIFICATION by Responsible Official

Identify the items that are included as part of your administratively complete application in the checklist below. For your application to be complete, it must include information necessary to evaluate the source and to determine all applicable requirements. Answer the compliance statements as they pertain to all the applicable requirements to which the source is subject. The source's Responsible Official must sign and date this form.

Listing of ROP Application Contents. Check the box	for the items included with your application
Completed ROP Renewal Application Form (and	
any AI-001 Forms) (required)	Compliance Plan/Schedule of Compliance
Mark-up copy of existing ROP using official version from the AQD website (required)	Stack information
Copies of all Permit(s) to Install (PTIs) that have not been incorporated into existing ROP (required)	Acid Rain Permit Initial/Renewal Application
Criteria Pollutant/Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) Potential to Emit Calculations	Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) Information
MAERS Forms (to report emissions not previously submitted)	Confidential Information
Copies of all Consent Order/Consent Judgments that have not been incorporated into existing ROP	□ Paper copy of all documentation provided (required)
Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan	☐ Electronic documents provided (optional)
Other Plans (e.g., Malfunction Abatement, Fugitive Dust, Operation and Maintenance, etc.)	Other, explain:
This source is in compliance with <u>all</u> of its applicable require existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incomplicable requirements not currently contained in the	
applicable requirements not currently contained in the exis	orporated into that ROP, and other ☐ Yes ☒ No
This source will continue to be in compliance with all of its a contained in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have a and other applicable requirements not currently contained i	applicable requirements, including those
his source will meet in a timely manner applicable require permit term.	ments that become effective during the
he method(s) used to determine compliance for each appl xisting ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been inco-	⊠ Yes □ No
existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incomot currently contained in the existing ROP.	rporated into that ROP, and all other applicable requirements
any of the above are checked No, identify the emission ur umber(s) or applicable requirement for which the source is OP renewal on an Al-001 Form. Provide a compliance pla	nit(s) or flexible group(s) affected and the specific condition or will be out of compliance at the time of issuance of the an and schedule of compliance on an Al-001 Form.
lame and Title of the Responsible Official (Print or Type	
OBERT MEACHAM - SR. ENVIRONMENTAL & FACILITY	'ENGINEER
As a Responsible Official, I certify that, based on info the statements and information in this application are	rmation and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, etrue, accurate, and complete.
Signature of Responsible Official	6/22/2023
Omitted of Responsible Official	Date

For Assistance Contact: 800-662-9278

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):
------------	---------------------------------

PART C: SOURCE REQUIREMENT INFORMATION

Answer the questions below for specific requirements or programs to which the source may be subject.

not y emiss emiss MAEI includ	al emissions and associated data from <u>all</u> emission units with applicable requirements uding those identified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install and other equipment that have et been incorporated into the ROP) are required to be reported in MAERS. Are there any sions and associated data that have <u>not</u> been reported in MAERS for the most recent sions reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) that was/were not reported in RS on an Al-001 Form. Applicable MAERS form(s) for unreported emission units must be ded with this application.	☐ Yes	S 🛭 No
(- 0 C	s source subject to the federal regulations on ozone-depleting substances? FR Part 82)	☐ Yes	⊠ No
(0001	source subject to the federal Chemical Accident Prevention Provisions? on 112(r) of the Clean Air Act Amendments, 40 CFR Part 68)	☐ Yes	⊠ No
	, a Risk Management Plan (RMP) and periodic updates must be submitted to the USEPA. n updated RMP been submitted to the USEPA?	☐ Yes	⊠ No
lead) e If <u>Yes</u> numbe	nis stationary source <u>added or modified</u> equipment since the last ROP renewal that es the potential to emit (PTE) for criteria pollutant (CO, NOx, PM10, PM2.5, SO ₂ , VOC, emissions? Include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or ROP revision application ers, or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on 001 Form.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
If <u>No,</u> 0	criteria pollutant potential emission calculations do not need to be included. is stationary source added or modified equipment since the best DOD.		
Clean If <u>Yes,</u> numbe an AI-(If <u>No</u> , F	Air Act? include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or ROP revision application or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on DO1 Form. Fugitive emissions must be included in HAP emission calculations. HAP potential emission calculations do not need to be included.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
the spe	ecific emission units subject to the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR)? If Yes, identify	☐ Yes	⊠ No
Onnoord	y emission units subject to the federal Acid Rain Program? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific on unit(s) subject to the federal Acid Rain Program on an Al-001 Form.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
8. Are an	cid Rain Permit Renewal Application included with this application?	☐ Yes	⊠ No
If <u>Yes</u> , i	dentify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CAM on an Al-001 Form. If a CAM plan been previously submitted to EGLE, one must be included with the ROP renewal ion on an Al-001 Form. If the CAM Plan has been updated, include an updated copy.	⊠ Yes	□No
If a CAN 1. Monit 2. Presu	M plan included with this application? M Plan is included, check the type of proposed monitoring included in the Plan: coring proposed by the source based on performance of the control device, or imptively Acceptable Monitoring, if eligible	⊠ Yes	□ No
Permit to	e source have any plans such as a malfunction abatement plan, fugitive dust plan, n/maintenance plan, or any other monitoring plan that is referenced in an existing ROP, o Install requirement, or any other applicable requirement? Then a copy must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application.	⊠ Yes [□No
0. Are ther	e any specific requirements that the source proposes to be identified in the ROP as non-		
applicab	10.] Yes [⊠ No │
If Yes, th	nen a description of the requirement and justification must be submitted as part of the newal application on an Al-001 Form.		1

SRN: B1909	Section N
5KN. D 1909	Section Number (if applicable):

PART D: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) EXEMPT EMISSION UNIT INFORMATION Review all emission units at the source and answer the question below.

D1. Does the source	e have any emission units that do not applied in the ROP applied in th	pear in the existing ROP but are	
	ollution Control Rules? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the		
Note: Emission unit must be captured in exempt Storage Tar	s that are subject to process specific emis either Part G or H of this application forn nks).	ssion limitations or standards, ev	ven if identified in Rule 21 be grouped (e.g. PTI
Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description	Rule 212(4) Citation [e.g. Rule 212(4)(c)]	Rule 201 Exemption Rule Citation [e.g. Rule 282(2)(b)(i)]
omments:			
Check here if an A	AI-001 Form is attached to provide more	information for Part D. Enter Al-	001 Form ID: AL
			T. Com ID. AI-

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):
------------	---------------------------------

PART E: EXISTING ROP INFORMATION

Review all emission units and applicable requirements (including any source wide requirements) in the <u>existing</u> ROP and answer the questions below as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units and <u>all</u> applicable requirements in the existing ROP.

IE1	Does the source propose to make any additional to		
	. Does the source propose to make any additions, changes or deletions to terms, conditions and underlying applicable requirements as they appear in the existing ROP?	⊠ voo	
	If <u>Yes,</u> identify changes and additions on Part F, Part G and/or Part H	Yes	☐ No
	. For each emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP, <u>all</u> stacks with applicable requirements are to be reported in MAERS. Are there any stacks with applicable requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the existing ROP that were <u>not</u> reported in the most recent MAERS reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identity the stack(s) that was/were not reported on applicable MAERS form(s).	Yes	⊠ No
	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been modified or reconstructed that required a PTI?		
	If <u>Yes</u> , complete Part F with the appropriate information.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
	Have any emission units identified in the existing ROP been dismantled? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) and the dismantle date in the comment area below or on an Al-001 Form.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
	Check here if an Al-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part E. Enter Al-001 Form		
	Formation for Part E. Enter Al-001 Form	1 ID: AI-	

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):	

PART F: PERMIT TO INSTALL (PTI) INFORMATION
Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions as they pertain to <u>all</u> emission units with PTIs. Any PTI(s) identified below must be attached to the application.

F1 Has the source	o obtained any DTI-			
been incorpora If <u>No</u> , go to Pa	area unto the existing	where the applicable requirements from the PTI have not ROP? If Yes, complete the following table.	☐ Ye	es 🛭 No
Permit to Install Number	Emission Units/Flexible Group ID(s)	Description (Include Process Equipment, Control Devices and Monitoring Devices)	Date En Unit wa Modifie Recons	s Installed d/
				-
F2. Do any of the P	TIs listed above cha	ange, add, or delete terms/conditions to established		
affected in the cand deletions in	comments area below a mark-up of the ex	y? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) w or on an AI-001 Form and identify all changes, additions, sisting ROP.	Yes	⊠ No
and include the	new emission unit(s	ntify new emission units that need to be incorporated into s part of the ROP renewal application on an Al-001 Form, or flexible group(s) in the mark-up of the existing ROP.	Yes	
listed above that Yes, identity the	t were <u>not</u> reported i stack(s) that were n	requirements for emission unit(s) identified in the PTIs n MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If not reported on the applicable MAERS form(s).	☐ Yes [⊠ No
the ROP? If Yes	in the First listed a	we changes to any of the emission unit names, descriptions above for any emission units not already incorporated into ges on an Al-001 Form.	☐ Yes [⊠ No
Comments:				
Check hara if a	AL 004 F			
- Oliecy liele it at	AI-UUT Form is atta	ached to provide more information for Part F. Enter Al-001 Fo	orm ID: A	.1-

SRN:	B1909	

Section Number (if applicable):

PART G: EMISSION UNITS MEETING THE CRITERIA OF RULES 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), OR 290

Review all emission units and applicable requirements at the source and answer the following questions.

G1. Does the source have any new the existing ROP and which me	and/or existing emission units which do not already appear in et the criteria of Rules 281(2)(h), 285(2)(r)(iv), 287(2)(c), or 290.	
If Yes, identify the emission unit	s in the table below. If <u>No</u> , go to Part H.	24
Note: If several emission units	were installed under the same rule above, provide a description fication/reconstruction date for each.	☐ Yes No
Origin of Applicable Emiss Requirements descri	ion Unit Description – Provide Emission Unit ID and a ption of Process Equipment, Control Devices and pring Devices	Date Emission Unit was Installed Modified/
Rule 281(2)(h) or 285(2)(r)(iv) cleaning operation		Reconstructed
Rule 287(2)(c) surface coating line		
Rule 290 process with limited emissions		
Comments:		
Check here if an Al-001 Form is a	attached to provide more information for Part G. Enter Al-001 Fo	orm ID: AI-

SRN: B1909

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE

Complete this part of the application form for all proposed additions, changes or deletions to the existing ROP. This includes state or federal regulations that the source is subject to and that must be incorporated into the ROP or other proposed changes to the existing ROP. **Do not include additions or changes that have already been identified in Parts F or G of this application form.** If additional space is needed copy and complete an additional Part H.

Complete a separate Part H for each emission unit with proposed additions and/or changes.

Γ			
	H1. Are there changes that need to be incorporated into the ROP that have not been identified in Parts F and G? If <u>Yes</u> , answer the questions below.	⊠ Yes	□ No
	H2. Are there any proposed administrative changes to any of the existing emission unit names, descriptions or control devices in the ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , describe the changes in questions H8 – H16 below and in the affected Emission Unit Table(s) in the mark-up of the ROP.	⊠ Yes	□No
ŀ	H3. Does the source propose to add a new emission unit or flexible group to the ROP not previously identified in Parts F or G? If <u>Yes</u> , identify and describe the emission unit name, process description, control device(s), monitoring device(s) and applicable requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and in a new Emission Unit Table in the mark-up of the ROP. See instructions on how to incorporate a new emission unit/flexible group into the ROP.	Yes	⊠ No
ŀ	H4. Does the source propose to add new state or federal regulations to the existing ROP?	☐ Yes	⊠ No
	If <u>Yes</u> , on an Al-001 Form, identify each emission unit/flexible group that the new regulation applies to and identify <u>each</u> state or federal regulation that should be added. Also, describe the new requirements in questions H8 – H16 below and add the specific requirements to existing emission units/flexible groups in the mark-up of the ROP, create a new Emission Unit/Flexible Group Table, or add an AQD template table for the specific state or federal requirement.		<u></u>
	15. Has a Consent Order/Consent Judgment (CO/CJ) been issued where the requirements were not incorporated into the existing ROP? If <u>Yes</u> , list the CO/CJ number(s) below and add or change the conditions and underlying applicable requirements in the appropriate Emission Unit/Flexible Group Tables in the mark-up of the ROP.	Yes	⊠ No
H	6. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete source-wide requirements? If Yes, identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	⊠ No
17	7. Are you proposing to streamline any requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the streamlined and subsumed requirements and the EU ID, and provide a justification for streamlining the applicable requirement below.	☐ Yes [⊠ No

CDN - B4000	0
SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

(Continued)		
H8. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete emission limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Ye	s 🛚 No
H9. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete material limit requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	☐ Yes	s ⊠ No
H10. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete process/operational restriction requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	⊠ No
H11.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete design/equipment parameter requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	⊠ Yes	□No
CWC now has the ability to monitor water flow at the venturi and wet cap processes for EU-WES	ST-CUPO	LA-1.
H12. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete testing/sampling requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	⊠ Yes	□No
No testing of emissions from EU-POURING as the unit has no control devices and expected res	ults would	d be
IAO D		
H13.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete monitoring/recordkeeping requirements? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	⊠ Yes	□No
Change Manometer range for EU-MP-RBB for DC#13 from 8-12 to 8-13.		
MAD		
114. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete reporting requirements? If Yes, identify the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	Yes	⊠ No

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if
	Section Number (if applicable):

PART H: REQUIREMENTS FOR ADDITION OR CHANGE – (continued)

H15. Does the source propose to add, change and/or I. I. I.			
H15.Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete stack/vent restrictions ′ the addition/change/deletion in a mark-up of the corresponding section of the R0 justification below.	OP and provide a	☐ Yes	⊠ No
H16. Does the source propose to add, change and/or delete any other requirements?	1414		
justification below.	P and provide a	Yes	⊠ No
H17. Does the source propose to add terms and conditions for an alternative operating			
corresponding section of the ROP and provide a justification below.	ark-up of the		⊠ No
Check here if an Al-001 Form is attached to provide more information of Parket			
Check here if an AI-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part H.	Enter Al-001 Form	ID: Al-	

EGLE

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

		- Complete this form
4 Additional Let	SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):
Additional Information ID AI-001 PART B		
Additional Information		
2. Is This Information Confidential?		
		☐ Yes ⊠ No
Stack testing conducted on 4/12/23 to 4/18/23 w tested emission sources could be above the cu division.	ith test results received o rrent permitted levels and	n 6/9/23 for EU-POURING show 4 of 6
uivision.		To am an indicate an quality
		Page 1 of 1

For Assistance Contact: 800-662-9278 Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy - Air Quality Division

EGLE

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

	SRN: B1909	Section Number (if applicable):	
Additional Information ID Al-001 PART C	,		
Additional Information			
2. Is This Information Confidential?		☐ Yes ⊠ No	
CAM PLAN UNITS EU-MP-RBB, EU-ACS-SAND, EU	J-WEST-CUPOLA-1, E	U-SHAKEOUT - SEE ATTACHED PLANS	
		Page 1 of	1

For Assistance Contact: 800-662-9278



CWC TEXTRON 1085 W. Sherman Blvd., Muskegon, MI 49441

CWC TEXTRON 1085 W. Sherman Blvd. Muskegon, MI 49441-3588 Phone: (231) 773-1331 Fax: (231) 739-2649

November 17, 2022

This is intended to serve as our written acknowledgement that (signatory) Mr. Robert R. Meacham Sr. Environmental & Facilities Engineer of CWC-Textron is hereby authorized to sign permit applications and regulatory reporting data reports for all environmental mediums including matters related to Air Emissions, Water Discharges, Waste Hazardous and Non-Hazardous, Storm Sewer Discharges, Sanitary Sewer Discharges, Emergency Response Activities, Spill Plans and any other environmental issues related to permits and regulatory data reports.

Printed Name: JAMES WRIGHT

Date: November 17, 2022

Fignature: Title: Vice President CWC Textron

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES, AND ENERGY AIR QUALITY DIVISION

EFFECTIVE DATE: January 22, 2019 REVISION DATE: May 3, 2022

ISSUED TO

CWC TEXTRON

State Registration Number (SRN): B1909

LOCATED AT

1085 West Sherman Boulevard, Muskegon, Michigan 49441-3588

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT

Permit Number: MI-ROP-B1909-2019a

Expiration Date: January 22, 2024

Administratively Complete ROP Renewal Application Due Between July 22, 2022 and July 22, 2023

This Renewable Operating Permit (ROP) is issued in accordance with and subject to Section 5506(3) of Part 55, Air Pollution Control, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended (Act 451). Pursuant to Michigan Air Pollution Control Rule 210(1), this ROP constitutes the permittee's authority to operate the stationary source identified above in accordance with the general conditions, special conditions and attachments contained herein. Operation of the stationary source and all emission units listed in the permit are subject to all applicable future or amended rules and regulations pursuant to Act 451 and the federal Clean Air Act.

SOURCE-WIDE PERMIT TO INSTALL

Permit Number: MI-PTI-B1909-2019a

This Permit to Install (PTI) is issued in accordance with and subject to Section 5505(5) of Act 451. Pursuant to Michigan Air Pollution Control Rule 214a, the terms and conditions herein, identified by the underlying applicable requirement citation of Rule 201(1)(a), constitute a federally enforceable PTI. The PTI terms and conditions do not expire and remain in effect unless the criteria of Rule 201(6) are met. Operation of all emission units identified in the PTI is subject to all applicable future or amended rules and regulations pursuant to Act 451 and the federal Clean Air Act.

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy

Heidi Hollenbach, Grand Rapids District Supervisor

(Rev. 08-22-17)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AUTHORITY AND ENFORCEABILITY	3
A. GENERAL CONDITIONS	4
Permit Enforceability	4
General Provisions.	4
Equipment & Design	
Emission Limits	5
Monitoring/Recordkeeping	
Certification & Reporting	6
Permit Shield	7
Revisions	
Reopenings	
Renewals	
Risk Management Plan	9 9
Emission Trading	9
Permit to Install (PTI)	10
B. SOURCE-WIDE CONDITIONS	11
C. EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS	
EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE	
EU-POURING	
EU-BULK-BONDEU-DUCTILE-IRON	19
EU-NEW-SAND	21
EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1	26
EU-MP-RBB	30
EU-ACS-SAND	33
D. FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS	36
FLEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE	
FG-MACT-ZZZZZ	
FG-PARTICULATE	
FG-RULE290	
FG-COLDCLEANERS	
E. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS	49
APPENDICES	50
Appendix 1. Acronyms and Abbreviations	50
Appendix 2. Schedule of Compliance	51
Appendix 3. Monitoring Requirements	51
Appendix 4. Recordkeeping	
Appendix 5. Testing Procedures	
Appendix 6. Permits to Install	51 52
Appendix 8. Reporting	

AUTHORITY AND ENFORCEABILITY

For the purpose of this permit, the **permittee** is defined as any person who owns or operates an emission unit at a stationary source for which this permit has been issued. The **department** is defined in Rule 104(d) as the Director of the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) or his or her designee.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the permit terms and conditions and the cited underlying applicable requirements. All terms and conditions in this ROP are both federally enforceable and state enforceable unless otherwise footnoted. Certain terms and conditions are applicable to most stationary sources for which an ROP has been issued. These general conditions are included in Part A of this ROP. Other terms and conditions may apply to a specific emission unit, several emission units which are represented as a flexible group, or the entire stationary source which is represented as a Source-Wide group. Special conditions are identified in Parts B, C, D and/or the appendices.

In accordance with Rule 213(2)(a), all underlying applicable requirements are identified for each ROP term or condition. All terms and conditions that are included in a PTI are streamlined, subsumed and/or is state-only enforceable will be noted as such.

In accordance with Section 5507 of Act 451, the permittee has included in the ROP application a compliance certification, a schedule of compliance, and a compliance plan. For applicable requirements with which the source is in compliance, the source will continue to comply with these requirements. For applicable requirements with which the source is not in compliance, the source will comply with the detailed schedule of compliance requirements that are incorporated as an appendix in this ROP. Furthermore, for any applicable requirements effective after the date of issuance of this ROP, the stationary source will meet the requirements on a timely basis, unless the underlying applicable requirement requires a more detailed schedule of compliance.

Issuance of this permit does not obviate the necessity of obtaining such permits or approvals from other units of government as required by law.

A. GENERAL CONDITIONS

Permit Enforceability

- All conditions in this permit are both federally enforceable and state enforceable unless otherwise noted. (R 336.1213(5))
- Those conditions that are hereby incorporated in a state-only enforceable Source-Wide PTI pursuant to Rule 201(2)(d) are designated by footnote one. (R 336.1213(5)(a), R 336.1214a(5))
- Those conditions that are hereby incorporated in a federally enforceable Source-Wide PTI pursuant to Rule 201(2)(c) are designated by footnote two. (R 336.1213(5)(b), R 336.1214a(3))

General Provisions

- 1. The permittee shall comply with all conditions of this ROP. Any ROP noncompliance constitutes a violation of Act 451, and is grounds for enforcement action, for ROP revocation or revision, or for denial of the renewal of the ROP. All terms and conditions of this ROP that are designated as federally enforceable are enforceable by the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and by citizens under the provisions of the federal Clean Air Act (CAA). Any terms and conditions based on applicable requirements which are designated as "state-only" are not enforceable by the USEPA or citizens pursuant to the CAA. (R 336.1213(1)(a))
- 2. It shall not be a defense for the permittee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(b))
- 3. This ROP may be modified, revised, or revoked for cause. The filing of a request by the permittee for a permit modification, revision, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not stay any ROP term or condition. This does not supersede or affect the ability of the permittee to make changes, at the permittee's own risk, pursuant to Rule 215 and Rule 216. (R 336.1213(1)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall allow the department, or an authorized representative of the department, upon presentation of credentials and other documents as may be required by law and upon stating the authority for and purpose of the investigation, to perform any of the following activities: (R 336.1213(1)(d))
 - a. Enter, at reasonable times, a stationary source or other premises where emissions-related activity is conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the ROP.
 - Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that must be kept under the conditions of the ROP
 - c. Inspect, at reasonable times, any of the following:
 - i. Any stationary source.
 - ii. Any emission unit.
 - iii. Any equipment, including monitoring and air pollution control equipment.
 - iv. Any work practices or operations regulated or required under the ROP.
 - d. As authorized by Section 5526 of Act 451, sample or monitor at reasonable times substances or parameters for the purpose of assuring compliance with the ROP or applicable requirements.
- 5. The permittee shall furnish to the department, within a reasonable time, any information the department may request, in writing, to determine whether cause exists for modifying, revising, or revoking the ROP or to determine compliance with this ROP. Upon request, the permittee shall also furnish to the department copies of any records that are required to be kept as a term or condition of this ROP. For information which is claimed by the permittee to be confidential, consistent with the requirements of the 1976 PA 442, MCL §15.231 et seq., and known as the Freedom of Information Act, the person may also be required to furnish the records directly to the USEPA together with a claim of confidentiality. (R 336.1213(1)(e))

- 6. A challenge by any person, the Administrator of the USEPA, or the department to a particular condition or a part of this ROP shall not set aside, delay, stay, or in any way affect the applicability or enforceability of any other condition or part of this ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(f))
- 7. The permittee shall pay fees consistent with the fee schedule and requirements pursuant to Section 5522 of Act 451. (R 336.1213(1)(g))
- 8. This ROP does not convey any property rights or any exclusive privilege. (R 336.1213(1)(h))

Equipment & Design

- 9. Any collected air contaminants shall be removed as necessary to maintain the equipment at the required operating efficiency. The collection and disposal of air contaminants shall be performed in a manner so as to minimize the introduction of contaminants to the outer air. Transport of collected air contaminants in Priority I and II areas requires the use of material handling methods specified in Rule 370(2).² (R 336.1370)
- 10. Any air cleaning device shall be installed, maintained, and operated in a satisfactory manner and in accordance with the Michigan Air Pollution Control rules and existing law. (R 336.1910)

Emission Limits

- 11. Unless otherwise specified in this ROP, the permittee shall comply with Rule 301, which states, in part, "Except as provided in subrules 2, 3, and 4 of this rule, a person shall not cause or permit to be discharged into the outer air from a process or process equipment a visible emission of a density greater than the most stringent of the following:"2 (R 336.1301(1))
 - a. A 6-minute average of 20% opacity, except for one 6-minute average per hour of not more than 27% opacity.
 - b. A limit specified by an applicable federal new source performance standard.

The grading of visible emissions shall be determined in accordance with Rule 303.

- 12. The permittee shall not cause or permit the emission of an air contaminant or water vapor in quantities that cause, alone or in reaction with other air contaminants, either of the following:
 - a. Injurious effects to human health or safety, animal life, plant life of significant economic value, or property.¹
 (R 336.1901(a))
 - b. Unreasonable interference with the comfortable enjoyment of life and property. (R 336.1901(b))

Testing/Sampling

- 13. The department may require the owner or operator of any source of an air contaminant to conduct acceptable performance tests, at the owner's or operator's expense, in accordance with Rule 1001 and Rule 1003, under any of the conditions listed in Rule 1001(1).² (R 336.2001)
- 14. Any required performance testing shall be conducted in accordance with Rule 1001(2), Rule 1001(3) and Rule 1003. (R 336.2001(2), R 336.2001(3), R 336.2003(1))
- 15. Any required test results shall be submitted to the Air Quality Division (AQD) in the format prescribed by the applicable reference test method within 60 days following the last date of the test. (R 336.2001(5))

Monitoring/Recordkeeping

- 16. Records of any periodic emission or parametric monitoring required in this ROP shall include the following information specified in Rule 213(3)(b)(i), where appropriate. (R 336.1213(3)(b))
 - a. The date, location, time, and method of sampling or measurements.
 - b. The dates the analyses of the samples were performed.
 - c. The company or entity that performed the analyses of the samples.
 - d. The analytical techniques or methods used.
 - e. The results of the analyses.
 - f. The related process operating conditions or parameters that existed at the time of sampling or measurement.
- 17. All required monitoring data, support information and all reports, including reports of all instances of deviation from permit requirements, shall be kept and furnished to the department upon request for a period of not less than 5 years from the date of the monitoring sample, measurement, report or application. Support information includes all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip-chart recordings, or other original data records, for continuous monitoring instrumentation and copies of all reports required by the ROP. (R 336.1213(1)(e), R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

Certification & Reporting

- 18. Except for the alternate certification schedule provided in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii)(B), any document required to be submitted to the department as a term or condition of this ROP shall contain an original certification by a Responsible Official which states that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the document are true, accurate, and complete. (R 336.1213(3)(c))
- 19. A Responsible Official shall certify to the appropriate AQD District Office and to the USEPA that the stationary source is and has been in compliance with all terms and conditions contained in the ROP except for deviations that have been or are being reported to the appropriate AQD District Office pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c). This certification shall include all the information specified in Rule 213(4)(c)(i) through (v) and shall state that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the certification are true, accurate, and complete. The USEPA address is: USEPA, Air Compliance Data Michigan, Air and Radiation Division, 77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois 60604-3507. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 20. The certification of compliance shall be submitted annually for the term of this ROP as detailed in the special conditions, or more frequently if specified in an applicable requirement or in this ROP. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 21. The permittee shall promptly report any deviations from ROP requirements and certify the reports. The prompt reporting of deviations from ROP requirements is defined in Rule 213(3)(c)(ii) as follows, unless otherwise described in this ROP. (R 336.1213(3)(c))
 - a. For deviations that exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP, prompt reporting means reporting consistent with the requirements of Rule 912 as detailed in Condition 25. All reports submitted pursuant to this paragraph shall be promptly certified as specified in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii).
 - b. For deviations which exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP and which are not reported pursuant to Rule 912 due to the duration of the deviation, prompt reporting means the reporting of all deviations in the semiannual reports required by Rule 213(3)(c)(i). The report shall describe reasons for each deviation and the actions taken to minimize or correct each deviation.
 - c. For deviations that do not exceed the emissions allowed under the ROP, prompt reporting means the reporting of all deviations in the semiannual reports required by Rule 213(3)(c)(i). The report shall describe the reasons for each deviation and the actions taken to minimize or correct each deviation.

- 22. For reports required pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii), prompt certification of the reports is described in Rule 213(3)(c)(iii) as either of the following: (R 336.1213(3)(c))
 - a. Submitting a certification by a Responsible Official with each report which states that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in the report are true, accurate, and complete.
 - b. Submitting, within 30 days following the end of a calendar month during which one or more prompt reports of deviations from the emissions allowed under the ROP were submitted to the department pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii), a certification by a Responsible Official which states that; "based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information contained in each of the reports submitted during the previous month were true, accurate, and complete." The certification shall include a listing of the reports that are being certified. Any report submitted pursuant to Rule 213(3)(c)(ii) that will be certified on a monthly basis pursuant to this paragraph shall include a statement that certification of the report will be provided within 30 days following the end of the calendar month.
- 23. Semiannually for the term of the ROP as detailed in the special conditions, or more frequently if specified, the permittee shall submit certified reports of any required monitoring to the appropriate AQD District Office. All instances of deviations from ROP requirements during the reporting period shall be clearly identified in the reports. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 24. On an annual basis, the permittee shall report the actual emissions, or the information necessary to determine the actual emissions, of each regulated air pollutant as defined in Rule 212(6) for each emission unit utilizing the emissions inventory forms provided by the department. (R 336.1212(6))
- 25. The permittee shall provide notice of an abnormal condition, start-up, shutdown, or malfunction that results in emissions of a hazardous or toxic air pollutant which continue for more than one hour in excess of any applicable standard or limitation, or emissions of any air contaminant continuing for more than two hours in excess of an applicable standard or limitation, as required in Rule 912, to the appropriate AQD District Office. The notice shall be provided not later than two business days after the start-up, shutdown, or discovery of the abnormal conditions or malfunction. Notice shall be by any reasonable means, including electronic, telephonic, or oral communication. Written reports, if required under Rule 912, must be submitted to the appropriate AQD District Supervisor within 10 days after the start-up or shutdown occurred, within 10 days after the abnormal conditions or malfunction has been corrected, or within 30 days of discovery of the abnormal conditions or malfunction, whichever is first. The written reports shall include all of the information required in Rule 912(5) and shall be certified by a Responsible Official in a manner consistent with the CAA.² (R 336.1912)

Permit Shield

- 26. Compliance with the conditions of the ROP shall be considered compliance with any applicable requirements as of the date of ROP issuance, if either of the following provisions is satisfied. (R 336.1213(6)(a)(i), R 336.1213(6)(a)(ii))
 - a. The applicable requirements are included and are specifically identified in the ROP.
 - b. The permit includes a determination or concise summary of the determination by the department that other specifically identified requirements are not applicable to the stationary source.

Any requirements identified in Part E of this ROP have been identified as non-applicable to this ROP and are included in the permit shield.

- 27. Nothing in this ROP shall alter or affect any of the following:
 - a. The provisions of Section 303 of the CAA, emergency orders, including the authority of the USEPA under Section 303 of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(i))
 - b. The liability of the owner or operator of this source for any violation of applicable requirements prior to or at the time of this ROP issuance. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(ii))
 - The applicable requirements of the acid rain program, consistent with Section 408(a) of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(iii))

- d. The ability of the USEPA to obtain information from a source pursuant to Section 114 of the CAA. (R 336.1213(6)(b)(iv))
- 28. The permit shield shall not apply to provisions incorporated into this ROP through procedures for any of the following:
 - a. Operational flexibility changes made pursuant to Rule 215. (R 336.1215(5))
 - b. Administrative Amendments made pursuant to Rule 216(1)(a)(i)-(iv). (R 336.1216(1)(b)(iii))
 - c. Administrative Amendments made pursuant to Rule 216(1)(a)(v) until the amendment has been approved by the department. (R 336.1216(1)(c)(iii))
 - d. Minor Permit Modifications made pursuant to Rule 216(2). (R 336.1216(2)(f))
 - e. State-Only Modifications made pursuant to Rule 216(4) until the changes have been approved by the department. (R 336.1216(4)(e))
- 29. Expiration of this ROP results in the loss of the permit shield. If a timely and administratively complete application for renewal is submitted not more than 18 months, but not less than 6 months, before the expiration date of the ROP, but the department fails to take final action before the end of the ROP term, the existing ROP does not expire until the renewal is issued or denied, and the permit shield shall extend beyond the original ROP term until the department takes final action. (R 336.1217(1)(c), R 336.1217(1)(a))

Revisions

- For changes to any process or process equipment covered by this ROP that do not require a revision of the ROP pursuant to Rule 216, the permittee must comply with Rule 215. (R 336.1215, R 336.1216)
- 31. A change in ownership or operational control of a stationary source covered by this ROP shall be made pursuant to Rule 216(1). (R 336.1219(2))
- 32. For revisions to this ROP, an administratively complete application shall be considered timely if it is received by the department in accordance with the time frames specified in Rule 216. (R 336.1210(10))
- 33. Pursuant to Rule 216(1)(b)(iii), Rule 216(2)(d) and Rule 216(4)(d), after a change has been made, and until the department takes final action, the permittee shall comply with both the applicable requirements governing the change and the ROP terms and conditions proposed in the application for the modification. During this time period, the permittee may choose to not comply with the existing ROP terms and conditions that the application seeks to change. However, if the permittee fails to comply with the ROP terms and conditions proposed in the application during this time period, the terms and conditions in the ROP are enforceable. (R 336.1216(1)(c)(iii), R 336.1216(2)(d), R 336.1216(4)(d))

Reopenings

- 34. A ROP shall be reopened by the department prior to the expiration date and revised by the department under any of the following circumstances:
 - a. If additional requirements become applicable to this stationary source with three or more years remaining in the term of the ROP, but not if the effective date of the new applicable requirement is later than the ROP expiration date. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(i))
 - If additional requirements pursuant to Title IV of the CAA become applicable to this stationary source. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(ii))
 - c. If the department determines that the ROP contains a material mistake, information required by any applicable requirement was omitted, or inaccurate statements were made in establishing emission limits or the terms or conditions of the ROP. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(iii))
 - d. If the department determines that the ROP must be revised to ensure compliance with the applicable requirements. (R 336.1217(2)(a)(iv))

Renewals

35. For renewal of this ROP, an administratively complete application shall be considered timely if it is received by the department not more than 18 months, but not less than 6 months, before the expiration date of the ROP. (R 336.1210(8))

Stratospheric Ozone Protection

- 36. If the permittee is subject to Title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 82 and services, maintains, or repairs appliances except for motor vehicle air conditioners (MVAC), or disposes of appliances containing refrigerant, including MVAC and small appliances, or if the permittee is a refrigerant reclaimer, appliance owner or a manufacturer of appliances or recycling and recovery equipment, the permittee shall comply with all applicable standards for recycling and emissions reduction pursuant to 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart F.
- 37. If the permittee is subject to 40 CFR Part 82, and performs a service on motor (fleet) vehicles when this service involves refrigerant in the MVAC, the permittee is subject to all the applicable requirements as specified in 40 CFR Part 82, Subpart B, Servicing of Motor Vehicle Air Conditioners. The term "motor vehicle" as used in Subpart B does not include a vehicle in which final assembly of the vehicle has not been completed by the original equipment manufacturer. The term MVAC as used in Subpart B does not include the air-tight sealed refrigeration system used for refrigerated cargo or an air conditioning system on passenger buses using Hydrochlorofluorocarbon-22 refrigerant.

Risk Management Plan

- 38. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall register and submit to the USEPA the required data related to the risk management plan for reducing the probability of accidental releases of any regulated substances listed pursuant to Section 112(r)(3) of the CAA as amended in 40 CFR 68.130. The list of substances, threshold quantities, and accident prevention regulations promulgated under 40 CFR Part 68, do not limit in any way the general duty provisions under Section 112(r)(1).
- 39. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall comply with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68, no later than the latest of the following dates as provided in 40 CFR 68.10(a):
 - a. June 21, 1999,
 - b. Three years after the date on which a regulated substance is first listed under 40 CFR 68.130, or
 - The date on which a regulated substance is first present above a threshold quantity in a process.
- 40. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall submit any additional relevant information requested by any regulatory agency necessary to ensure compliance with the requirements of 40 CFR Part 68.
- 41. If subject to Section 112(r) of the CAA and 40 CFR Part 68, the permittee shall annually certify compliance with all applicable requirements of Section 112(r) as detailed in Rule 213(4)(c)). (40 CFR Part 68)

Emission Trading

42. Emission averaging and emission reduction credit trading are allowed pursuant to any applicable interstate or regional emission trading program that has been approved by the Administrator of the USEPA as a part of Michigan's State Implementation Plan. Such activities must comply with Rule 215 and Rule 216. (R 336.1213(12))

Permit to Install (PTI)

- 43. The process or process equipment included in this permit shall not be reconstructed, relocated, or modified unless a PTI authorizing such action is issued by the department, except to the extent such action is exempt from the PTI requirements by any applicable rule.² (R 336.1201(1))
- 44. The department may, after notice and opportunity for a hearing, revoke PTI terms or conditions if evidence indicates the process or process equipment is not performing in accordance with the terms and conditions of the PTI or is violating the department's rules or the CAA.² (R 336.1201(8), Section 5510 of Act 451)
- 45. The terms and conditions of a PTI shall apply to any person or legal entity that now or hereafter owns or operates the process or process equipment at the location authorized by the PTI. If a new owner or operator submits a written request to the department pursuant to Rule 219 and the department approves the request, this PTI will be amended to reflect the change of ownership or operational control. The request must include all of the information required by Subrules (1)(a), (b) and (c) of Rule 219. The written request shall be sent to the appropriate AQD District Supervisor, EGLE.² (R 336.1219)
- 46. If the installation, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment for which PTI terms and conditions have been approved has not commenced within 18 months of the original PTI issuance date, or has been interrupted for 18 months, the applicable terms and conditions from that PTI, as incorporated into the ROP, shall become void unless otherwise authorized by the department. Furthermore, the person to whom that PTI was issued, or the designated authorized agent, shall notify the department via the Supervisor, Permit Section, EGLE, AQD, P. O. Box 30260, Lansing, Michigan 48909, if it is decided not to pursue the installation, reconstruction, relocation, or modification of the equipment allowed by the terms and conditions from that PTI.² (R 336.1201(4))

Footnotes:

¹This condition is state-only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

B. SOURCE-WIDE CONDITIONS

Part B outlines the Source-Wide Terms and Conditions that apply to this stationary source. The permittee is subject to these special conditions for the stationary source in addition to the general conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply to this source, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no Source-Wide Conditions, this section will be left blank.

SOURCE-WIDE CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

All process equipment at the facility including equipment covered by other permits, grand-fathered equipment and exempt equipment.

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	Each Individual HAP	Less than 9.0 tpy ²	12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month	All process equipment at the facility including equipment covered by other permits, grand-fathered equipment and exempt equipment.	SC VI.1 SC VI.2 SC VI.3 GC 13	R 336.1205(3)
2.	Aggregate HAPs	Less than 22.5 tpy ²	12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month	All process equipment at the facility including equipment covered by other permits, grand-fathered equipment and exempt equipment.	SC VI.1 SC VI.2 SC VI.3 GC 13	R 336.1205(3)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

1. The permittee shall not melt more than 129,325 tons per year of iron, based on a 12-month rolling time period, as determined at the end of each calendar month. This condition is necessary to ensure that the facility will not be a major source as defined in Section 112(d) of the Clean Air Act Amendments.² (R 336.1205(3))

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- Monthly records of iron melt quantities to determine compliance with the 12-month rolling limit of 129,325 tons.² (R 336.1205(3))
- 2. Individual and aggregate HAP emission calculations determining the monthly emission rate of each in tons per calendar month.² (R 336.1205(3))
- Individual and aggregate HAP emission calculations determining the cumulative emission rate of each during the first 12 months and the annual emission rate of each thereafter, in tons per 12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month.² (R 336.1205(3))

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall
 be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to
 December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NΑ

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

Footnotes:

¹This condition is state-only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

C. EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

Part C outlines terms and conditions that are specific to individual emission units listed in the Emission Unit Summary Table. The permittee is subject to the special conditions for each emission unit in addition to the General Conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no conditions specific to individual emission units, this section will be left blank.

EMISSION UNIT SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description (Including Process Equipment & Control Device(s))	Installation Date/ Modification Date	Flexible Group ID
EU-POURING	Iron pouring operation including both manual and automatic pouring operations.	01-01-1964 / 01-06-2015 09-20-2021	FG-PARTICULATE
EU-BULK-BOND	A storage silo and day bin which store bulk bond and have a pneumatic transport system. The silo and bin are each controlled by separate bin vent filters.	01-01-1964	NA
EU-DUCTILE-IRON	Equipment used for preparation of ductile iron which includes magnesium treatment vessels, a desulfurization ladle with fluorspar addition and an Ajax holding furnace. The furnace is also used for regular gray iron. Emissions from ductile treatment are controlled by DC#5.	12-29-1995	NA
EU-NEW-SAND	A bin which stores new sand. The bin is controlled by a bin vent filter.	03-07-1980	NA
EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1	Cupola #1, which is the west cupola. The emissions are controlled by two 5 MMBtu direct flame afterburners, wet cap, a high energy venturi scrubber and a high velocity mist eliminator. Emission unit includes charging operations.	07-27-1977	FG-MACT-ZZZZZ
EU-MP-RBB	Knockoff operation #227, Spiral Elevator #228 and Rocker Barrel Blast (finish blast). Baghouse collectors DC#13 and DC#1.	11-30-1998 / 01-05-2004	NA
EU-ACS-SAND	The ACS sand handling system. The system includes: New DC#19 which controls emissions from the sand cooler #16, the sand muller, the sand distribution tower, sand elevators #18 and #23 and from the sand basement.	01-01-1964 / 10-17-2011	NA

Emission Unit ID	Emission Unit Description (Including Process Equipment & Control Device(s))	Installation Date/ Modification Date	Flexible Group ID
EU-CLEAN	Metal cleaning operations which include hand grinders, cut-off saw, stand grinders and the West tumblast shotblaster. Emissions from the metal cleaning operations and the West tumblast shotblast are controlled by Wheelabrator DC#1 and the East tumblast shotblast is controlled by Wheelabrator DC#5.	01-01-1964	FG-PARTICULATE
EU-FINISHING	Metal finishing operations including milling, drilling, stand grinders, and finishing machines. Emissions from the metal finishing operations are controlled by DC#2.	03-25-1983	FG-PARTICULATE
EU-SHAKEOUT	Foundry shakeout includes the Vibra Drum #212, Shakeout #213 and the degating conveyor #225. Emissions are controlled by baghouses DC#17 and DC#6. Mold Dump #211 is controlled by DC#12.	01-01-1964 / 01-05-2004	FG-PARTICULATE
EU-AJAX-FURN	The East and West Ajax holding furnaces.	01-01-1964	FG-PARTICULATE
EU-COOLING	Cast cooling operation.	01-01-1964	FG-PARTICULATE

EU-POURING EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Iron pouring operation including both manual and automatic pouring operations.

Flexible Group ID: FG-PARTICULATE

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	PM	0.27 lb/ton of metal ²	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2 SC VI.3	R 336.2804 40 CFR 52.21(d)
2.	PM10	0.15 lb/ton of	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2	R 336.2804
		metal ² _0.27			SC VI.3	40 CFR 52.21(d)
3.	PM2.5	0.08 lb/ton of	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2	R 336.2804
		metal ² 0.27			SC VI.3	40 CFR 52.21(d)
4.	CO	2.597 lb/ton of	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2	R 336.2804
		metal ²	,		SC VI.3	40 CFR 52.21(d)
5.	NOx	0.01 lb/ton of	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2	R 336.2804
		metal ² 0.04			SC VI.3	40 CFR 52.21(d)
6.	VOC	0.14 lb/ton of	Hourly	EU-POURING	SC V.1, VI.2	R 336.2804
		metal ² 0.475			SC VI.3	40 CFR 52.21(d)

Formatted: Strikethrough Formatted: Not Strikethrough Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

Material	Limit	Time Period / Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring / Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
Metal melted	576 tons per	Daily	EU-POURING	SC VI.3	R 336.1225

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

The permittee shall verify particulate matter (PM, PM10, and PM2.5), volatile organic compounds (VOC), nitrogen
oxide (NOx) and carbon monoxide(CO) emission rates from EU-POURING by testing at owner's expense, in
accordance with the Department requirements. Testing shall be performed using an approved EPA Method listed
in:

Formatted: Strikethrough

Pollutant	Test Method Reference
PM, PM10, PM2.5	40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A; Part 10 of the Michigan Air Pollution Control Rules
NOx	40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A
VOC	40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A
CO	40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A

An alternate method, or a modification to the approved EPA Method, may be specified in an AQD-approved Test Protocol. No less than 30 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing, including any modifications to the method in the test protocol that are proposed after initial submittal. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor not less than 30 days of the time and place before performance tests are conducted. The permittee must submit a complete report of the test results to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office within 60 days following the last date of the test.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)

 The permittee shall verify the PM, PM10, PM2.5, VOC, nitrogen oxide and carbon monoxide emission rates from EU-POURING, at a minimum, one time prior to the expiration of this permit. Alternative test schedules may be used upon approval of the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. Verification of visible emissions from the three EU-POURING vents SV-POUR1, SV-POUR2, and SV-POUR3 shall be performed and documented once daily by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3.² (R 336.1301(1)(c))
- The permittee shall calculate and maintain monthly records, in a format acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor,
 of 12-month rolling emission rates of PM, PM-10, PM-2.5, CO, NOx, and VOC calculated in the appropriate units
 and using emission factors approved by the AQD District Supervisor.² (R 336.1205(3))
- The permittee shall monitor and record, in a satisfactory manner, the tons of metal melted per calendar day. The
 permittee shall keep all records on file at the facility and make them available to the Department upon request.¹
 (R 336.1225)

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. SV-POUR1	84 2	49 2	R 336.1225 40 CFR 52.21(c) & (d)
2. SV-POUR2	36 ²	47 ²	R 336.1225 40 CFR 52.21(c) & (d)
3. SV-POUR3	84 ²	49 ²	R 336.1225 40 CFR 52.21(c) & (d)
4. SV-POUR4	36 ²	47 ²	R 336.1225 40 CFR 52.21(c) & (d)

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NΑ

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-BULK-BOND EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Storage silo and day storage bin which store bulk bond and have a pneumatic transport system. The silo and bin are each controlled by separate bin vent collectors.

Flexible Group ID: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

The silo and day storage bin are controlled by separate bin vent collectors.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	PM	0.010 lb. per 1,000 lbs. exhaust gas, on a dry gas basis ²		Day Storage Bin	SC III.2 SC V.1 SC VI.1 SC VI.2	R 336.1331(1)(c)
2.	PM	0.10 lb. per 1,000 lbs. exhaust gas, on a dry gas basis ²		Storage Silo	SC V.1 SC VI.1 SC VI.2	R 336.1331(1)(a), Table 31(J)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate the bond storage silo or day bin, unless the respective filter collectors are installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate the process unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. Verification of visible emissions from EU-BULK-BOND shall be performed and documented once weekly by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))
- 2. The permittee shall keep records demonstrating compliance with the Preventative Maintenance Plan requirements. (R 336.1213(3))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

Footnotes:

- ¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).
- ² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-DUCTILE-IRON EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Equipment used for preparation of ductile iron which includes magnesium treatment vessels, a desulfurization ladle with fluorspar addition and an Ajax holding furnace. The furnace is also used for regular gray iron.

Flexible Group ID: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Dust Collector (DC)#5

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/	Equipment	Monitoring/	Underlying
			Operating Scenario		Testing Method	Applicable Requirements
1.	PM	0.01 lb. per 1,000 lbs. exhaust gas, on a dry gas basis²		EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC V.1 SC VI.3 SC VI.4 SC VI.5	R 336.1331(1)(c)
2.	PM	2.25 lbs. per hour ²	Daily average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.3 SC VI.4 SC VI.5	R 336.1331(1)(c)
3.	PM	9.855 tpy ²	12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC III.2 SC VI.3 SC VI.4 SC VI.5	R 336.1331(1)(c)
4.	Visible Emissions	10% opacity ²	6-minute average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.4	R 336.1301(1)(c)
5.	Fluorides	1.40 milligrams per cubic meter, corrected to 70 degrees Fahrenheit and 29.92 inches ²	8-hour average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.1	R 336.1201(3)
6.	Fluorides	0.263 lb. per hour ²	8-hour average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.1	R 336.1201(3)
7.	Fluorides	1.15 tpy ²	12-month rolling time period as determined at the end of each calendar month	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.1	R 336.1201(3)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

Material	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. Fluorspar	54 lbs. per hour ²	Daily average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.1	R 336.1201(3)

	Material	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
2.	Ductile Iron	Shall not inoculate more than 24 tons per hour ²	8-hour average	EU-DUCTILE-IRON	SC VI.2	R 336.1201(3)

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate the process without a properly installed and operating dust collector.² (R 336.1910)
- The permittee shall not operate the process unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan specified is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- The permittee shall equip and maintain the dust collector, DC#5, with instrumentation to continuously measure the pressure drop across the dust collector.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall equip and maintain the dust collector, DC#5, with a particle sensor device. (R 336.1213(3))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall monitor and record once per quarter, the actual fluorspar feed rate that is going into the process in a manner and with instrumentation acceptable to the Air Quality Division. The permittee shall keep a record of the total fluorspar used per month.² (R 336.1201(3))
- 2. The permittee shall keep a record of the amount of ductile iron produced.² (R 336.1201(3))
- The permittee shall monitor and record the static pressure drop across the dust collector once per day. (R 336.1213(3))
- 4. Verification of visible emissions from EU-DUCTILE-IRON shall be performed and documented once weekly by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))
- 5. The permittee shall keep records demonstrating compliance with the Preventative Maintenance Plan requirements. (R 336.1213(3))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))

- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. SV-DUCTILE-IRON	48 ²	30 ²	R 336.1201(3)

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-NEW-SAND EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

A bin which stores new sand. The bin is controlled by a bin vent filter.

Flexible Group ID: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

The bin is equipped with a bin vent filter.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. PM	0.03 lb. per 1,000 lbs. of exhaust gases, calculated on a dry gas basis ²		EU-NEW-SAND	SC III.2 SC V.1 SC VI.1	R 336.1331(1)(c)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate the sand handling equipment unless the particulate collector is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate the process unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

1. Verification of visible emissions from EU-NEW-SAND shall be performed and documented once weekly by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))

2. The permittee shall keep records demonstrating compliance with the Preventative Maintenance Plan requirements. (R 336.1213(3))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

<u>Footnotes:</u> ¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Cupola #1, which is the west cupola. The emissions are controlled by two 5 MMBtu direct flame afterburners, wet cap, a high energy venturi scrubber and a high velocity mist eliminator. Emission unit includes charging operations. Emission unit is subject to Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) for particulate emissions.

Flexible Group ID: FG-MACT-ZZZZZ

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Direct flame afterburner, wet cap, high energy venturi scrubber, high velocity mist eliminator.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	PM	0.15 lb. per 1,000 lbs. of exhaust gases, calculated on a dry gas basis ²	,	EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1	SC III.2 SC V.2 SC VI.1 SC VI.4 SC VI.5	R 336.1331(1)(a), Table 31(D)(1)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate the cupola unless the afterburner, high energy venturi scrubber and high velocity mist eliminator are installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1910)
- The permittee shall not operate the process unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- The permittee shall equip and maintain the water line(s) in the emission control system with a water pressure indicator.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall equip the high energy venturi scrubber and demister with pressure drop monitors. (R 336.1213(3))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

 Opacity observations, utilizing Method 9 when operating, shall be performed and recorded semiannually. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)

The permittee shall verify the particulate matter and opacity emission rates from EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 by testing at owner's expense, in accordance with the Department requirements. Testing shall be performed using an approved EPA Method listed in:

Pollutant	Test Method Reference
PM	40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A; Part 10 of the Michigan Air Pollution Control Rules
Visible Emission	40 CFR Part 51, Appendix M; 40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A and B

An alternate method, or a modification to the approved EPA Method, may be specified in an AQD-approved Test Protocol. No less than 30 days prior to testing, the permittee shall submit a complete test plan to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office. The AQD must approve the final plan prior to testing, including any modifications to the method in the test protocol that are proposed after initial submittal. The permittee must submit a complete report of the test results to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office within 60 days following the last date of the test. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)

- 3. The permittee shall verify the particulate matter and opacity emission rates from EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1, at a minimum, every five years from the date of the last test. Alternative test schedules may be used upon approval of the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004)
- The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor not less than 30 days of the time and place before performance tests are conducted. (R 336.1213(3))

See Appendix 5

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- Verification of visible emissions from EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 shall be performed and documented once daily by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))
- The permittee shall record the number and weight of charges added to the cupola, including a separate record of coke, on a production day basis when the cupola is operating and melting. (R 336.1213(3))
- 3. The permittee shall maintain a monthly record of the hours of cupola operation. (R 336.1213(3))
- The permittee shall record the water pressure rate to the high energy venturi scrubber system once per day. The gauge shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- The permittee shall record the static pressure drop across the high energy venturi scrubber and demister once per day. The gauge shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- An excursion will be any of the following: the water pressure rate to the venturi scrubber deviates from its normal range (46-80 psi, during blasting), or the demister pressure drop deviates from its normal level (3" or less) or the venturi scrubber pressure drop deviates from its normal range (30" – 56"). (40 CFR 64.6(c)(2))
- 7. Upon detecting an excursion or exceedance, the owner or operator shall restore operation of EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 (including the control device and associated capture system) to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution practices for minimizing emissions. The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction and taking any necessary corrective actions to restore normal operation and prevent the likely recurrence of the cause of an excursion or exceedance (other than those caused by excused startup or shutdown conditions). (40 CFR 64.7(d))

- 8. Except for, as applicable, monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), the owner or operator shall collect data at all required intervals at all times that EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 is operating. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities shall not be used for purposes of this part, including data averages and calculations or fulfilling a minimum data availability requirement, if applicable. The owner or operator shall use all the data collected during all other periods in assessing the operation of the control device and associated control system. A monitoring malfunction is any sudden, in-frequent, not reasonably preventable failure of the monitoring to provide valid data. Monitoring failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation are not malfunctions. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, repair activities and QA/QC operations shall not be used for 40 CFR Part 64 compliance. (40 CFR 64.6(c)(3), 40 CFR 64.7(c))
- 9. The permittee shall properly maintain the monitoring system, including keeping necessary parts for routine repair of the monitoring equipment. (40 CFR 64.7(b))
- 10. The permittee shall maintain records of monitoring data, monitor performance data, corrective actions taken, any written Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) and any activities undertaken to implement a QIP, and other information such as data used to document the adequacy of monitoring, or records of monitoring maintenance or corrective actions. (40 CFR 64.9(b)(1))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on the number, duration and cause of excursions and/or exceedances and the corrective actions taken. If there were no excursions and/or exceedances in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no excursions and/or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(i))
- 5. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on monitor downtime. If there were no periods of monitor downtime in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no periods of monitor downtime. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(ii))
- 6. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include a description of the actions taken to implement a QIP during the reporting period (if appropriate). If a QIP has been completed, the report shall include documentation that the plan has been implemented and if it has reduced the likelihood of excursions or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(iii))
- The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NΑ

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

- 1. If the permittee identifies a failure to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard for which the approved monitoring did not provide an indication of an excursion or exceedance while providing valid data, or the results of compliance or performance testing document a need to modify the existing indicator ranges or designated conditions, the permittee shall promptly notify the AQD and if necessary, submit a proposed modification of the ROP and CAM Plan to address the necessary monitoring changes. Such a modification may include but is not limited to, reestablishing indicator ranges or designated conditions, modifying the frequency of conducting monitoring and collecting data, or the monitoring of additional parameters. (40 CFR 64.7(e))
- 2. The permittee shall comply with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 64. (40 CFR Part 64)

- <u>Footnotes:</u> ¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).
- ² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-MP-RBB EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Knockoff operation #227, Spiral Elevator #228 and Rocker Barrel Blast (finish blast). Emission unit is subject to CAM for particulate emissions.

Flexible Group ID: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Dust Collector (DC)#1 Dust Collector (DC)#13 Dust Collector (DC)#6

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. PM	0.01 lb. per 1,000 lbs. of exhaust gases, calculated on a dry gas basis ²		EU-MP-RBB	SC V.1 SC VI.2 SC VI.3	R 336.1331(1)(c)
Visible Emissions	10% opacity ²	6-minute average	EU-MP-RBB	SC VI.1	R 336.1301(1)(c)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The permittee shall not operate the Knockoff operation #227, Spiral Elevator #228 and Rocker Barrel Blast (finish blast) unless the dust collectors are installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate the process unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. The permittee shall equip and maintain the dust collectors with instrumentation to continuously measure the pressure drop across the dust collector. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall equip and maintain dust collectors, DC#1, DC#6 and DC#13, with particle sensor devices. (R 336.1213(3))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. Verification of visible emissions from EU-MP-RBB shall be performed and documented once daily by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))
- The permittee shall monitor and record the static pressure drop across the dust collectors once per day. The gauges shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(1)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- The permittee shall record the readings from the particle sensors on each of the dust collectors once per day.
 The devices shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(1)(i) & (ii))
- 4. An excursion will occur if the pressure drop across the dust collectors deviates from their normal ranges (DC#13: 8" -13, 42", DC#6: 7" 12", DC#1: 7" 12"), or if particle sensor readings deviate from the limits established within the Preventative Maintenance Plan. (40 CFR 64.6(c)(2))
- 5. Upon detecting an excursion or exceedance, the owner or operator shall restore operation of EU-MP-RBB (including the control device and associated capture system) to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution practices for minimizing emissions. The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction and taking any necessary corrective actions to restore normal operation and prevent the likely recurrence of the cause of an excursion or exceedance (other than those caused by excused startup or shutdown conditions). (40 CFR 64.7(d))
- 6. Except for, as applicable, monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), the owner or operator shall collect data at all required intervals at all times that EU-MP-RBB is operating. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities shall not be used for purposes of this part, including data averages and calculations or fulfilling a minimum data availability requirement, if applicable. The owner or operator shall use all the data collected during all other periods in assessing the operation of the control device and associated control system. A monitoring malfunction is any sudden, in-frequent, not reasonably preventable failure of the monitoring to provide valid data. Monitoring failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation are not malfunctions. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, repair activities and QA/QC operations shall not be used for 40 CFR Part 64 compliance.
 (40 CFR 64.6(c)(3), 40 CFR 64.7(c))
- 7. The permittee shall, at all times, maintain the monitoring system, including but not limited to, maintaining necessary parts for routine repairs of the monitoring equipment. (40 CFR 64.7(b))
- 8. The permittee shall maintain records of monitoring data, monitor performance data, corrective actions taken, any written Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) and any activities undertaken to implement a QIP, and other information such as data used to document the adequacy of monitoring, or records of monitoring maintenance or corrective actions. (40 CFR 64.9(b)(1))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))

Formatted: Strikethrough

- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on the number, duration and cause of excursions and/or exceedances and the corrective actions taken. If there were no excursions and/or exceedances in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no excursions and/or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(i))
- 5. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on monitor downtime. If there were no periods of monitor downtime in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no periods of monitor downtime. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(ii))
- 6. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include a description of the actions taken to implement a QIP during the reporting period, if appropriate. If a QIP has been completed, the report shall include documentation that the QIP has been implemented, and a discussion pertaining to whether the QIP implementation has reduced the likelihood of excursions or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(iii))
- The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

The exhaust gases from the stacks listed in the table below shall be discharged unobstructed vertically upwards to the ambient air unless otherwise noted:

	Stack & Vent ID	Maximum Exhaust Dimensions (inches)	Minimum Height Above Ground (feet)	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	SV-DC#13	442	26 ²	R 336.1331
2.	SV-DC#1	52 ²	36 ²	R 336.1331

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

- 1. If the permittee identifies a failure to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard for which the approved monitoring did not provide an indication of an excursion or exceedance while providing valid data, or the results of compliance or performance testing document a need to modify the existing indicator ranges or designated conditions, the permittee shall promptly notify the AQD and if necessary, submit a proposed modification of the ROP and CAM Plan to address the necessary monitoring changes. Such a modification may include but is not limited to, reestablishing indicator ranges or designated conditions, modifying the frequency of conducting monitoring and collecting data, or the monitoring of additional parameters. (40 CFR 64.7(e))
- 2. The permittee shall comply with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 64. (40 CFR Part 64)

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

²This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

EU-ACS-SAND EMISSION UNIT CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

The ACS sand system includes: Dust Collector (DC)#19 which controls emissions from the sand cooler #16, the sand muller, the sand distribution tower, sand elevators #18 and #23 and the sand basement. Emission unit is subject to CAM for particulate emissions.

Flexible Group ID: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Dust Collector (DC)#19

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.	PM	0.10 lb. per	Hourly	EU-ACS-SAND	SC III.1	R 336.1331(1)(a),
		1,000 lbs. of	-		SC V.1	Table 31(J)
		exhaust gas, on			SC.VI.1	` '
		a dry gas basis2			SC.VI.2	

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NΑ

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate EU-ACS-SAND unless the dust collector, DC#19, is installed and operating properly.² (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate any of the processes unless the Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. Acceptable plans and any modifications shall be submitted to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

1. The permittee shall equip and maintain the dust collector, DC#19, with instrumentation to continuously measure the pressure drop across the dust collector. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1910)

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

1. Verification of visible emissions from EU-ACS-SAND shall be performed and documented once daily by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))

- The permittee shall monitor and record the static pressure drop across the dust collector once per day. The gauge shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(1)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- 3. An excursion will occur if the pressure drop across the dust collector deviates from the normal range (DC#19: 3" 7"). (40 CFR 64.6(c)(2))
- 4. Upon detecting an excursion or exceedance, the permittee shall restore operation of EU-ACS-SAND to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction and taking any necessary corrective actions to restore normal operation and prevent the likely recurrence of the cause of an excursion or exceedance (other than those caused by excused startup or shutdown conditions). (40 CFR 64.7(d))
- 5. Except for, as applicable, monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), the owner or operator shall collect data at all required intervals at all times that EU-ACS-SAND is operating. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities shall not be used for purposes of this part, including data averages and calculations or fulfilling a minimum data availability requirement, if applicable. The owner or operator shall use all the data collected during all other periods in assessing the operation of the control device and associated control system. A monitoring malfunction is any sudden, in-frequent, not reasonably preventable failure of the monitoring to provide valid data. Monitoring failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation are not malfunctions. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, repair activities and QA/QC operations shall not be used for 40 CFR Part 64 compliance. (40 CFR 64.6(c)(3), 40 CFR 64.7(c))
- The permittee shall maintain records of monitoring data, monitor performance data, corrective actions taken, any
 written Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) and any activities undertaken to implement a QIP, and other information
 such as data used to document the adequacy of monitoring, or records of monitoring maintenance or corrective
 actions. (40 CFR 64.9(b)(1))
- 7. For EU-ACS-SAND, the permittee shall, at all times, maintain the monitoring system, including but not limited to, maintaining necessary parts for routine repairs of the monitoring equipment. (40 CFR 64.7(b))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on the number, duration and cause of excursions and/or exceedances and the corrective actions taken. If there were no excursions and/or exceedances in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no excursions and/or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(i))
- 5. Each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on monitor downtime. If there were no periods of monitor downtime in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no periods of monitor downtime. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(ii))

- 6. For EU-ACS-SAND, each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include a description of the actions taken to implement a QIP during the reporting period, if appropriate. If a QIP has been completed, the report shall include documentation that the QIP has been implemented, and a discussion pertaining to whether the QIP implementation has reduced the likelihood of excursions or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(iii))
- 7. The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NΑ

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

- 1. If the permittee identifies a failure to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard for which the approved monitoring did not provide an indication of an excursion or exceedance while providing valid data, or the results of compliance or performance testing document a need to modify the existing indicator ranges or designated conditions, the permittee shall promptly notify the AQD and if necessary, submit a proposed modification of the ROP and CAM Plan to address the necessary monitoring changes. Such a modification may include but is not limited to, reestablishing indicator ranges or designated conditions, modifying the frequency of conducting monitoring and collecting data, or the monitoring of additional parameters. (40 CFR 64.7(e))
- 2. For EU-ACS-SAND, the permittee shall comply with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 64. (40 CFR Part 64)

Footnotes

¹This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

D. FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

Part D outlines the terms and conditions that apply to more than one emission unit. The permittee is subject to the special conditions for each flexible group in addition to the General Conditions in Part A and any other terms and conditions contained in this ROP.

The permittee shall comply with all specific details in the special conditions and the underlying applicable requirements cited. If a specific condition type does not apply, NA (not applicable) has been used in the table. If there are no special conditions that apply to more than one emission unit, this section will be left blank.

FLEXIBLE GROUP SUMMARY TABLE

The descriptions provided below are for informational purposes and do not constitute enforceable conditions.

Flexible Group ID	Flexible Group Description	Associated Emission Unit IDs
FG-MACT-ZZZZZ	The affected source is an existing iron and/or steel foundry, that is (or is part of) an area source of hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions. The affected source is an existing large foundry as defined by 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart ZZZZZ.	EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1
FG-PARTICULATE	Various particulate emission sources.	EU-POURING EU-CLEAN EU-FINISHING EU-SHAKEOUT EU-AJAX-FURN EU-COOLING
FG-RULE290	Any emission unit that emits air contaminants and is exempt from the requirements of Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, Rule 278a and Rule 290. Emission units installed/modified before December 20, 2016, may show compliance with Rule 290 in effect at the time of installation/modification.	NA
FG-COLDCLEANERS	Any cold cleaner that is grandfathered or exempt from Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, Rule 278a, and Rule 281(2)(h) or Rule 285(2)(r)(iv). Existing cold cleaners were placed into operation prior to July 1, 1979. New cold cleaners were placed into operation on or after July 1, 1979.	NA

FG-MACT-ZZZZZ FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

The affected source is an existing iron and/or steel foundry, that is (or is part of) an area source of hazardous air pollutant (HAP) emissions. The affected source is an existing large foundry as defined by 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart 77777.

Emission Unit: EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

Two 5 MBTU direct flame afterburner, wet cap, high energy venturi scrubber, high velocity mist eliminator.

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario	Equipment	Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1. Opacity (fugitive)	20% 6-min. average, except for one 6-min. average per hour that does not exceed 30% ²	6-minute average	Each Building or Structure Housing any Iron or Steel Foundry Emission Source	SC III.1 SC III.3 SC III.4 SC V.1	40 CFR 63.10895(e)
2. PM OR	0.8 pounds per ton of metal charged	Hourly	EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1	SC III.1 SC III.2 SC III.3 SC V.2	40 CFR 63.10895(c)
Total Metal HAP	0.06 pound per ton of metal charged ²				

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

 The permittee shall not utilize a binder chemical formulation that uses methanol as a specific ingredient of the catalyst formulation for a furfuryl alcohol warm box mold or core making line. This requirement does not apply to the resin portion of the binder system.² (40 CFR 63.10886)

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- For each segregated metallic scrap storage area, bin or pile, the permittee must comply with the material acquisition requirements contained in 40 CFR 63.10885(a)(1) or 40 CFR 63.10885(a)(2).² (40 CFR 63.10885(a))
- 2. For scrap containing motor vehicle scrap, the permittee must procure the scrap pursuant to one of the compliance options in 40 CFR 63.10885(b)(1), (2), or (3).² (40 CFR 63.10885(b))
- 3. The permittee shall operate a capture and collection system for each metal melting furnace at a new or existing iron and steel foundry unless that furnace is specifically uncontrolled as part of an emissions averaging group.

Each capture and collection system must meet accepted engineering standards, such as those published by the American Conference of Governmental Industrial Hygienists.² (40 CFR 63.10895(b))

- 4. The permittee shall prepare and operate at all times according to a written Operation and Maintenance Plan (O&M Plan) for each control device for an emissions source subject to a PM, metal HAP, or opacity emissions limit in 40 CFR 63.10895. At a minimum the plan must contain the information listed in 40 CFR 63.10896(a)(1)-(6)).² (40 CFR 63.10896)
- 5. The permittee shall conduct inspections of each operating particulate matter control device for a metal melting furnace in accordance with 40 CFR 63.10897(a).² (40 CFR 63.10897(a))
- 6. The permittee shall conduct monthly inspections of the equipment important to the performance of the total capture system in accordance with 40 CFR 63.10897(e).² (40 CFR 63.10897(e))
- 7. The permittee shall implement and maintain an approved plan to address the pollution prevention management practices for metallic scrap and mercury switches by the applicable compliance date specified in 40 CFR 63.10881. The plan shall include the following:
 - a. Metallic scrap management program. (40 CFR 63.10885(a))
 - b. Mercury requirements. (40 CFR 63.10885(b))

The permittee shall revise the plan within 30 days after a change occurs.2 (40 CFR 63.10885)

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NΑ

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- The permittee shall conduct a performance test to demonstrate compliance with the opacity limit in 40 CFR 63.10895(e), following the test methods and procedures in 40 CFR 63.6(h)(5) and Table 1 of Subpart ZZZZZ. Subsequent compliance testing shall be conducted no less frequently than every 6 months and each time a process change likely to increase fugitive emissions is made.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004, 40 CFR 63.10898(h), 40 CFR 63.10898(i))
- 2. The permittee shall conduct performance testing to demonstrate compliance with applicable PM or Total Metal HAP emission rates from EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 according to the requirements in 40 CFR 63.7(e)(1), and Table 1 of Subpart ZZZZZ and paragraphs (d) through (g) of subsection 40 CFR 63.10898. The permittee shall conduct subsequent compliance testing to demonstrate compliance with all applicable emission limits no less frequently than every 5 years and each time the permittee elects to change an operating limit or make a process change likely to increase HAP emissions.² (R 336.2001, R 336.2003, R 336.2004, 40 CFR 63.10898(b))
- 3. The permittee shall notify the AQD Technical Programs Unit Supervisor and the District Supervisor not less than 30 days of the time and place before performance tests are conducted.² (R 336.2001(4))
- 4. In the performance test report, the permittee must certify that the capture system operated normally during the performance test.² (40 CFR 63.10898(j))

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

 The permittee shall keep records to document use of any binder chemical formulation that does not contain methanol as a specific ingredient of the catalyst formulation for each furfuryl alcohol warm box mold or core making line as required by 40 CFR 63.10886. These records must be the Safety Data Sheets (provided that it contains appropriate information), a certified product data sheet, or a manufacturer's hazardous air pollutant data sheet.² (40 CFR 63.10890)

- The permittee shall keep records of the annual quantity and composition of each HAP-containing chemical binder or coating material used to make molds and cores. These records must be copies of purchasing records, Safety Data Sheets, or other documentation that provide information on the binder or coating materials used.² (40 CFR 63.10899)
- 3. The permittee shall keep records of the metal melt production for each calendar month.2 (40 CFR 63.10899(6))
- The permittee shall keep records documenting compliance with scrap material specifications in accordance with 40 CFR 63.10899(b)(1),(2) and (3).² (40 CFR 63.10899(b)(1), (2) and (3))
- 5. The permittee shall keep records demonstrating compliance with the O&M Plan requirements.² (40 CFR 63.10899(7))
- The permittee must install, operate, and maintain each CPMS or other measurement device according to the O&M plan. The permittee must record all information needed to document conformance with the requirements of the O&M plan.² (40 CFR 63.10897(f))
- In the event of an exceedance of an established emissions limitation (including an operating limit), the permittee must restore operation of the emissions source and record the corrective action in accordance with 40 CFR 63.10897(g) and 40 CFR 10899(b)(12).² (40 CFR 63.10897(g), 40 CFR 10899(b)(12))
- 8. The permittee shall keep records of periodic inspections as well as any maintenance action on a particulate matter control device for a metal melting furnace. Records shall include, at a minimum, the information specified in 40 CFR 63.1089(b)(13)(i) through (iii).² (40 CFR 63.10899(b)(13))
- 9. The permittee shall keep records of monthly inspections and repairs of equipment important to the performance of the total capture system for the metal melting furnace control equipment.² (40 CFR 63.10899(b)(10))
- 10. The permittee shall keep records of emission information and operating and maintenance information to comply with the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants as specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and ZZZZZ. The permittee shall keep all source emissions and operating and maintenance information on file at the facility for a period of at least 5 years and make them available to the Department upon request.² (40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A & ZZZZZZ)

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. The permittee shall submit semiannual compliance reports to the Administrator according to the requirements in 40 CFR 63.10(e). The reports must include, at a minimum, the following information as applicable:² (40 CFR 63.10899(c))
 - a. Summary information on the number, duration, and cause (including unknown cause, if applicable) of excursions or exceedances, as applicable, and the corrective action taken;
 - Summary information on the number, duration, and cause (including unknown cause, if applicable) for monitor downtime incidents (other than downtime associated with zero and span or other calibration checks, if applicable); and

- c. Summary information on any deviation from the pollution prevention management practices in 40 CFR 63.10885 and 40 CFR 63.10886 and the operation and maintenance requirements 40 CFR 63.10896 and the corrective action taken.
- 5. If applicable, the permittee shall submit semiannual reports of the number of mercury switches removed or the weight of mercury recovered from the switches and properly managed, the estimated number of vehicles processed, an estimate of the percent of mercury switches recovered, and a certification that the recovered mercury switches were recycled at RCRA-permitted facilities. The semiannual reports must include a certification that the facility has conducted periodic inspections or taken other means of corroboration as required under 40 CFR 63.10885(b)(1)(ii)(C). The permittee shall identify which option in 40 CFR 63.10885(b) applies to each scrap provider, contract, or shipment.² (40 CFR 63.10899(b)(2)(i))
- The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD.² (R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

 The permittee shall comply with all applicable provisions of the National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants, as specified in 40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and ZZZZZ for Iron and Steel Foundries by the initial compliance date.² (40 CFR Part 63, Subparts A and ZZZZZ)

Footnotes:

¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FG-PARTICULATE FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Various particulate sources: EU-SHAKEOUT is subject to CAM for particulate emissions.

Emission Units: EU-POURING, EU-CLEAN, EU-FINISHING, EU-SHAKEOUT, EU-AJAX-FURN, EU-COOLING

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

EU-CLEAN: 50,000 CFM DC#1, 50,000 CFM DC#5

EU-FINSHING: 15,000 CFM DC#2
EU-SHAKEOUT: 60,000 CFM DC#17, 50,000 CFM DC#6, 70,000 CFM DC#20, and 20,000 CFM DC#12

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

	Pollutant	Limit	Time Period/ Operating Scenario		Monitoring/ Testing Method	Underlying Applicable Requirements
1.		0.10 lb. per 1,000 lbs. of exhaust gas, on a dry gas basis ²		FG-PARTICULATE	SC III.2 SC V.1 SC VI.1 SC VI.2 SC VI.3	R336.1331(1)(a), Table 31(J)

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NA

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- The permittee shall not operate the processes associated with each emission unit unless the appropriate control equipment for the above listed emission units is installed and operating properly.2 (R 336.1910)
- 2. The permittee shall not operate any of the processes unless the approved Preventative Maintenance Plan is implemented and maintained. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. The permittee shall equip and maintain the dust collectors with instrumentation to continuously measure the pressure drop across the dust collectors. (R 336.1213(3))
- The permittee shall equip and maintain dust collectors, DC#1 and DC#6, with a particle sensor device. (R 336.1213(3))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. Verification of visible emissions from FG-PARTICULATE, for all emission units with control equipment, shall be performed and documented once daily by non-certified visible emissions readings while the emission unit is operating, per Appendix 3. (R 336.1213(3))
- 2. The permittee shall monitor and record the static pressure drop across the dust collectors once per day when the processes are in operation. The gauges for DC#6, DC#17, and DC#20 shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(1)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- The permittee shall monitor and record the particle sensor readings once per day when EU-SHAKEOUT is in operation. The device shall be calibrated according to manufacturer's recommendations. (R 336.1213(3), 40 CFR 64.6(c)(1)(i), (ii) & (iii))
- 4. For EU-SHAKEOUT, an excursion will occur if the pressure drop across the dust collectors deviate from their normal ranges (DC#6: 7" 12", DC#20: 3" 7", DC#17: 7" 12"), or if DC#6 particle sensor readings deviate from the limits established within the Preventative Maintenance Plan. (40 CFR 64.6(c)(2))
- 5. Upon detecting an excursion or exceedance, the permittee shall restore operation of EU-SHAKEOUT to its normal or usual manner of operation as expeditiously as practicable in accordance with good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. The response shall include minimizing the period of any startup, shutdown or malfunction and taking any necessary corrective actions to restore normal operation and prevent the likely recurrence of the cause of an excursion or exceedance (other than those caused by excused startup or shutdown conditions). (40 CFR 64.7(d))
- 6. Except for, as applicable, monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities (including, as applicable, calibration checks and required zero and span adjustments), the owner or operator shall collect data at all required intervals at all times that EU-SHAKEOUT is operating. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, associated repairs, and required quality assurance or control activities shall not be used for purposes of this part, including data averages and calculations or fulfilling a minimum data availability requirement, if applicable. The owner or operator shall use all the data collected during all other periods in assessing the operation of the control device and associated control system. A monitoring malfunction is any sudden, in-frequent, not reasonably preventable failure of the monitoring to provide valid data. Monitoring failures that are caused in part by poor maintenance or careless operation are not malfunctions. Data recorded during monitoring malfunctions, repair activities and QA/QC operations shall not be used for 40 CFR Part 64 compliance. (40 CFR 64.6(c)(3), 40 CFR 64.7(c))
- 7. For EU-SHAKEOUT, the permittee shall, at all times, maintain the monitoring system, including but not limited to, maintaining necessary parts for routine repairs of the monitoring equipment. (40 CFR 64.7(b))
- 8. For EU-SHAKEOUT, the permittee shall maintain records of monitoring data, monitor performance data, corrective actions taken, any written Quality Improvement Plan (QIP) and any activities undertaken to implement a QIP, and other information such as data used to document the adequacy of monitoring, or records of monitoring maintenance or corrective actions. (40 CFR 64.9(b)(1))

See Appendix 3

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- 2. Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))

- Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))
- 4. For EU-SHAKEOUT, each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on the number, duration and cause of excursions and/or exceedances and the corrective actions taken. If there were no excursions and/or exceedances in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no excursions and/or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(i))
- 5. For EU-SHAKEOUT, each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include summary information on monitor downtime. If there were no periods of monitor downtime in the reporting period, then this report shall include a statement that there were no periods of monitor downtime. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(ii))
- 6. For EU-SHAKEOUT, each semiannual report of monitoring and deviations shall include a description of the actions taken to implement a QIP during the reporting period, if appropriate. If a QIP has been completed, the report shall include documentation that the QIP has been implemented, and a discussion pertaining to whether the QIP implementation has reduced the likelihood of excursions or exceedances. (40 CFR 64.9(a)(2)(iii))
- 7. The permittee shall submit any performance test reports to the AQD Technical Programs Unit and District Office, in a format approved by the AQD. (R 336.1213(3)(c), R 336.2001(5))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

- 1. For EU-SHAKEOUT, if the permittee identifies a failure to achieve compliance with an emission limitation or standard for which the approved monitoring did not provide an indication of an excursion or exceedance while providing valid data, or the results of compliance or performance testing document a need to modify the existing indicator ranges or designated conditions, the permittee shall promptly notify the AQD and if necessary, submit a proposed modification of the ROP and CAM Plan to address the necessary monitoring changes. Such a modification may include but is not limited to, reestablishing indicator ranges or designated conditions, modifying the frequency of conducting monitoring and collecting data, or the monitoring of additional parameters. (40 CFR 64.7(e))
- 2. For EU-SHAKEOUT, the permittee shall comply with all requirements of 40 CFR Part 64. (40 CFR Part 64)

Footnotes:
¹ This condition is state only enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(b).

² This condition is federally enforceable and was established pursuant to Rule 201(1)(a).

FG-RULE290 FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Any emission unit that emits air contaminants and is exempt from the requirements of Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, Rule 278a and Rule 290. Emission units installed/modified before December 20, 2016, may show compliance with Rule 290 in effect at the time of installation/modification.

Emission Units installed on or after December 20, 2016: NA

Emission Units installed prior to December 20, 2016: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

- Each emission unit that emits only noncarcinogenic volatile organic compounds or noncarcinogenic materials which are listed in Rule 122(f) as not contributing appreciably to the formation of ozone, if the total uncontrolled or controlled emissions of air contaminants are not more than 1,000 or 500 pounds per month, respectively. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(i))
- 2. Any emission unit for which CO2 equivalent emissions are not more than 6,250 tons per month and for which the total uncontrolled or controlled emissions of all other air contaminants are not more than 1,000 or 500 pounds per month, respectively, and all the following criteria listed below are met: (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii))
 - a. For toxic air contaminants, excluding noncarcinogenic volatile organic compounds and noncarcinogenic materials which are listed in Rule 122(f) as not contributing appreciably to the formation of ozone, with initial threshold screening levels greater than or equal to 0.04 micrograms per cubic meter and less than 2.0 micrograms per cubic meter, the uncontrolled or controlled emissions shall not exceed 20 or 10 pounds per month, respectively.
 - (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii)(A))
 - For toxic air contaminants with initial risk screening levels greater than or equal to 0.04 microgram per cubic meter, the uncontrolled or controlled emissions shall not exceed 20 or 10 pounds per month, respectively. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii)(B))
 - c. The emission unit shall not emit any toxic air contaminants, excluding non-carcinogenic volatile organic compounds and noncarcinogenic materials which are listed in Rule 122(f) as not contributing appreciably to the formation of ozone, with an initial threshold screening level or initial risk screening level less than 0.04 microgram per cubic meter. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii)(C))
 - d. For total mercury, the uncontrolled or controlled emissions shall not exceed 0.01 pounds per month from emission units installed on or after December 20, 2016. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii)(D))
 - e. For lead, the uncontrolled or controlled emissions shall not exceed 16.7 pounds per month from emission units installed on or after December 20, 2016. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(ii)(E))
- 3. Any emission unit that emits only particulate air contaminants without initial risk screening levels and other air contaminants that are exempted under Rule 290(2)(a)(i) or Rule 290(2)(a)(ii), if all of the following provisions are met: (R 336.1290(2)(a)(iii))
 - a. The particulate emissions are controlled by an appropriately designed and operated fabric filter collector or an equivalent control system which is designed to control particulate matter to a concentration of less than or equal to 0.01 pound of particulate per 1,000 pounds of exhaust gases and which does not have exhaust gas flow rate more than 30,000 actual cubic feet per minute. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(iii)(A))
 - The visible emissions from the emission unit are not more than 5% opacity in accordance with the methods contained in Rule 303. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(iii)(B))

Page 44 of 53

c. The initial threshold screening level for each particulate toxic air contaminant, excluding nuisance particulate, is more than 2.0 micrograms per cubic meter. (R 336.1290(2)(a)(iii)(C))

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

NΑ

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- 1. The provisions of Rule 290 apply to each emission unit that is operating pursuant to Rule 290. (R 336.1290)
- The following requirements apply to emission units installed on or after December 20, 2016, utilizing control
 equipment:
 - a. An air cleaning device for volatile organic compounds shall be installed, maintained, and operated in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications. Examples include the following: (R 336.1290(2)(b)(i), R 336.1910)
 - i. Oxidizers and condensers equipped with a continuously displayed temperature indication device.
 - ii. Wet scrubbers equipped with a liquid flow rate monitor.
 - Dual stage carbon absorption where the first canister is monitored for breakthrough and replaced if breakthrough is detected.
 - b. An air cleaning device for particulate matter shall be installed, maintained, and operated in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications or the permittee shall develop a plan that provides to the extent practicable for the maintenance and operation of the equipment in the manner consistent with good air pollution control practices for minimizing emissions. It shall also be equipped to monitor appropriate indicators of performance, for example, static pressure drop, water pressure, and water flow rate. (R 336.1290(2)(b)(ii), R 336.1910)

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

NA

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. The permittee shall maintain records of the following information for each emission unit for each calendar month using the methods outlined in EGLE, AQD Rule 290; Permit to Install Exemption Record form (EQP 3558) or in a format that is acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3))
 - a. Records identifying each air contaminant that is emitted. (R 336.1213(3))
 - b. Records identifying if each air contaminant is controlled or uncontrolled. (R 336.1213(3))
 - c. Records identifying if each air contaminant is either carcinogenic or non-carcinogenic. (R 336.1213(3))
 - d. Records identifying the ITSL and IRSL, if established, of each air contaminant that is being emitted under the provisions of Rules 290(2)(a)(ii) and (iii). (R 336.1213(3))
 - e. Records of material use and calculations identifying the quality, nature, and quantity of the air contaminant emissions in sufficient detail to demonstrate that the actual emissions of the emission unit meet the emission limits outlined in this table and Rule 290. Volatile organic compound emissions from units installed on or after December 20, 2016, shall be calculated using mass balance, generally accepted engineering calculations, or another method acceptable to the AQD District Supervisor. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1290(2)(d))
 - f. Records are maintained on file for the most recent 2-year period and are made available to the department upon request. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1290(2)(e))

- 2. The permittee shall maintain an inventory of each emission unit that is exempt pursuant to Rule 290. This inventory shall include the following information. (R 336.1213(3))
 - a. The permittee shall maintain a written description of each emission unit as it is maintained and operated throughout the life of the emission unit. (R 336.1290(2)(c), R 336.1213(3))
 - b. For each emission unit that emits noncarcinogenic particulate air contaminants pursuant to Rule 290(2)(a)(iii), the permittee shall maintain a written description of the control device, including the designed control efficiency and the designed exhaust gas flow rate. (R 336.1213(3))
- 3. For each emission unit that emits noncarcinogenic particulate air contaminants pursuant to Rule 290(2)(a)(iii), the permittee shall perform a monthly visible emission observation of each stack or vent during routine operating conditions. This observation need not be performed using Method 9. The permittee shall keep a written record of the results of each observation. (R 336.1213(3))

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NA

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

FG-COLDCLEANERS FLEXIBLE GROUP CONDITIONS

DESCRIPTION

Any cold cleaner that is grandfathered or exempt from Rule 201 pursuant to Rule 278, Rule 278a, and Rule 281(2)(h) or Rule 285(2)(r)(iv). Existing cold cleaners were placed into operation prior to July 1, 1979. New cold cleaners were placed into operation on or after July 1, 1979.

Emission Unit: NA

POLLUTION CONTROL EQUIPMENT

NA

I. EMISSION LIMIT(S)

NA

II. MATERIAL LIMIT(S)

1. The permittee shall not use cleaning solvents containing more than five percent by weight of the following halogenated compounds: methylene chloride, perchloroethylene, trichloroethylene, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, carbon tetrachloride, chloroform, or any combination thereof. (R 336.1213(2))

III. PROCESS/OPERATIONAL RESTRICTION(S)

- Cleaned parts shall be drained for no less than 15 seconds or until dripping ceases. (R 336.1611(2)(b), R 336.1707(3)(b))
- 2. The permittee shall perform routine maintenance on each cold cleaner as recommended by the manufacturer. (R 336.1213(3))

IV. DESIGN/EQUIPMENT PARAMETER(S)

- 1. The cold cleaner must meet one of the following design requirements:
 - a. The air/vapor interface of the cold cleaner is no more than ten square feet. (R 336.1281(2)(h))
 - b. The cold cleaner is used for cleaning metal parts and the emissions are released to the general in-plant environment. (R 336.1285(2)(r)(iv))
- The cold cleaner shall be equipped with a device for draining cleaned parts. (R 336.1611(2)(b), R 336.1707(3)(b))
- All new and existing cold cleaners shall be equipped with a cover and the cover shall be closed whenever parts
 are not being handled in the cold cleaner. (R 336.1611(2)(a), R 336.1707(3)(a))
- 4. The cover of a new cold cleaner shall be mechanically assisted if the Reid vapor pressure of the solvent is more than 0.3 psia or if the solvent is agitated or heated. (R 336.1707(3)(a))
- 5. If the Reid vapor pressure of any solvent used in a new cold cleaner is greater than 0.6 psia; or, if any solvent used in a new cold cleaner is heated above 120 degrees Fahrenheit, then the cold cleaner must comply with at least one of the following provisions:
 - a. The cold cleaner must be designed such that the ratio of the freeboard height to the width of the cleaner is equal to or greater than 0.7. (R 336.1707(2)(a))

- The solvent bath must be covered with water if the solvent is insoluble and has a specific gravity of more than 1.0. (R 336.1707(2)(b))
- c. The cold cleaner must be controlled by a carbon adsorption system, condensation system, or other method of equivalent control approved by the AQD. (R 336.1707(2)(c))

V. TESTING/SAMPLING

NA

VI. MONITORING/RECORDKEEPING

Records shall be maintained on file for a period of five years. (R 336.1213(3)(b)(ii))

- 1. For each new cold cleaner in which the solvent is heated, the solvent temperature shall be monitored and recorded at least once each calendar week during routine operating conditions. (R 336.1213(3))
- 2. The permittee shall maintain the following information on file for each cold cleaner: (R 336.1213(3))
 - a. A serial number, model number, or other unique identifier for each cold cleaner.
 - b. The date the unit was installed, manufactured or that it commenced operation.
 - c. The air/vapor interface area for any unit claimed to be exempt under Rule 281(2)(h).
 - d. The applicable Rule 201 exemption.
 - e. The Reid vapor pressure of each solvent used.
 - f. If applicable, the option chosen to comply with Rule 707(2).
- 3. The permittee shall maintain written operating procedures for each cold cleaner. These written procedures shall be posted in an accessible, conspicuous location near each cold cleaner. (R 336.1611(3), R 336.1707(4))
- 4. As noted in Rule 611(2)(c) and Rule 707(3)(c), if applicable, an initial demonstration that the waste solvent is a safety hazard shall be made prior to storage in non-closed containers. If the waste solvent is a safety hazard and is stored in non-closed containers, verification that the waste solvent is disposed of so that not more than 20 percent, by weight, is allowed to evaporate into the atmosphere shall be made on a monthly basis. (R 336.1213(3), R 336.1611(2)(c), R 336.1707(3)(c))

VII. REPORTING

- 1. Prompt reporting of deviations pursuant to General Conditions 21 and 22 of Part A. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(ii))
- Semiannual reporting of monitoring and deviations pursuant to General Condition 23 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for reporting period July 1 to December 31 and September 15 for reporting period January 1 to June 30. (R 336.1213(3)(c)(i))
- 3. Annual certification of compliance pursuant to General Conditions 19 and 20 of Part A. The report shall be postmarked or received by the appropriate AQD District Office by March 15 for the previous calendar year. (R 336.1213(4)(c))

See Appendix 8

VIII. STACK/VENT RESTRICTION(S)

NΑ

IX. OTHER REQUIREMENT(S)

NA

E. NON-APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS

At the time of the ROP issuance, the AQD has determined that no non-applicable requirements have been identified for incorporation into the permit shield provision set forth in the General Conditions in Part A pursuant to Rule 213(6)(a)(ii).

APPENDICES

Appendix 1. Acronyms and Abbreviations

	Common Acronyms		Pollutant / Measurement Abbreviations
AQD	Air Quality Division	acfm	Actual cubic feet per minute
BACT	Best Available Control Technology	BTU	British Thermal Unit
CAA	Clean Air Act	°C	Degrees Celsius
CAM	Compliance Assurance Monitoring	CO	Carbon Monoxide
CEM	Continuous Emission Monitoring	CO ₂ e	Carbon Dioxide Equivalent
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations	dscf	Dry standard cubic foot
COM	Continuous Opacity Monitoring	dscm	Dry standard cubic meter
Department/	Michigan Department of Environment,	°F	Degrees Fahrenheit
department	Great Lakes, and Energy	gr	Grains
EGLE	Michigan Department of Environment,	HAP	Hazardous Air Pollutant
	Great Lakes, and Energy		
EU	Emission Unit	Hg	Mercury
FG	Flexible Group	hr	Hour
GACS	Gallons of Applied Coating Solids	HP	Horsepower
GC	General Condition	H₂S	Hydrogen Sulfide
GHGs	Greenhouse Gases	kW	Kilowatt
HVLP	High Volume Low Pressure*	lb	Pound
ID	Identification	m	Meter
IRSL	Initial Risk Screening Level	mg	Milligram
ITSL	Initial Threshold Screening Level	mm	Millimeter
LAER	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate	MM	Million
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology	MW	Megawatts
MAERS	Michigan Air Emissions Reporting System	NMOC	Non-methane Organic Compounds
MAP	Malfunction Abatement Plan	NO _x	Oxides of Nitrogen
		ng	Nanogram
MSDS	Material Safety Data Sheet	PM	Particulate Matter
NA	Not Applicable	PM10	Particulate Matter equal to or less than 10
NAAQS	National Ambient Air Quality Standards		microns in diameter
NESHAP	National Emission Standard for Hazardous	PM2.5	Particulate Matter equal to or less than 2.5
	Air Pollutants		microns in diameter
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards	pph	Pounds per hour
NSR	New Source Review	ppm	Parts per million
PS	Performance Specification	ppmv	Parts per million by volume
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration	ppmw	Parts per million by weight
PTE	Permanent Total Enclosure	psia	Pounds per square inch absolute
PTI	Permit to Install	psig	Pounds per square inch gauge
RACT	Reasonable Available Control Technology	scf	Standard cubic feet
ROP	Renewable Operating Permit	sec	Seconds
SC	Special Condition	SO ₂	Sulfur Dioxide
SCR	Selective Catalytic Reduction	TAC	Toxic Air Contaminant
SNCR	Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction	Temp	Temperature
SRN	State Registration Number	THC	Total Hydrocarbons
TEQ	Toxicity Equivalence Quotient	tpy	Tons per year
USEPA/EPA	United States Environmental Protection	μg	Microgram
	Agency	μm	Micrometer or Micron
VE	Visible Emissions	VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds

^{*}For HVLP applicators, the pressure measured at the gun air cap shall not exceed 10 psig.

Appendix 2. Schedule of Compliance

The permittee certified in the ROP application that this stationary source is in compliance with all applicable requirements and the permittee shall continue to comply with all terms and conditions of this ROP. A Schedule of Compliance is not required. (R 336.1213(4)(a), R 336.1119(a)(ii))

Appendix 3. Monitoring Requirements

The following monitoring procedures, methods, or specifications are the details to the monitoring requirements identified and referenced in EU-POURING, EU-BULK-BOND, EU-DUCTILE-IRON, EU-NEW-SAND, EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1, EU-MP-RBB, EU-ACS-SAND and FG-PARTICULATE.

The permittee shall conduct and record the following information during non-certified visual observations for opacity.

- 1. Visible emissions shall be recorded as "observed" or "not observed."
- 2. If visible emissions are observed, a description of the color of the emissions
- 3. If visible emissions are observed, the duration of the emission incident shall be recorded.
- 4. If visible emissions are observed, the maintenance supervisor shall be notified immediately.
- 5. A determination of cause and needed repairs and/or maintenance shall be made within 24 hours and recorded
- 6. Repair and/or maintenance operations shall be performed within 48 hours of discovery.
- 7. Routine maintenance shall be performed according to the manufacturer's recommendations

Appendix 4. Recordkeeping

Specific recordkeeping requirement formats and procedures are detailed in Part A or the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, this appendix is not applicable.

Appendix 5. Testing Procedures

Specific testing requirement plans, procedures, and averaging times are detailed in the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, this appendix is not applicable.

Appendix 6. Permits to Install

The following table lists any PTIs issued or ROP revision applications received since the effective date of the previously issued ROP No. MI-ROP-B1909-2013. Those ROP revision applications that are being issued concurrently with this ROP renewal are identified by an asterisk (*). Those revision applications not listed with an asterisk were processed prior to this renewal.

Source-Wide PTI No MI-PTI-B1909-2013a is being reissued as Source-Wide PTI No. MI-PTI-B1909-2019a.

Permit to Install Number	ROP Revision Application Number	Description of Equipment or Change	Corresponding Emission Unit(s) or Flexible Group(s)
139-14	201600015	Incorporate Permit to Install (PTI) No. 139-14, which decreased the amount of melted metal from 150,000 tons per year to 99,000 tons per year. This was due to the installation of a new automatic pouring line (EU-POURING) that accounted for a previous emission source that was formerly grandfathered equipment, and is now incorproated. The new line was excepted to be operational by January 25, 2016.	SOURCE-WIDE EU-POURING FG-PARTICULATE

The following table lists the ROP amendments or modifications issued after the effective date of ROP No. MI-ROP B1909-2019.

Permit to	ROP Revision	Description of Equipment or Change	Corresponding
Install	Application Number -		Emission Unit(s) or
Number	Issuance Date		Flexible Group(s)
69-21	202200034 / May 3, 2022	Incorporate PTI No. 69-21 which increased the melted metal from 99,000 tons per year to 129,325 tons per year to account for the use of both manual and automated pouring operations. Additionally, EU-POURING was modified to include the manual pouring line which previously operated under an exemption. Although not modified, other emission units and flexible groups were considered affected sources for the modern PSD applicability review and remain unchanged. This application was not required to go through the public participation process.	SOURCE-WIDE EU-POURING EU-BULK-BOND EU-DUCTILE-IRON EU-NEW-SAND EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1 EU-MP-RBB EU-ACS-SAND EU-CLEAN EU-FINISHING EU-SHAKEOUT EU-AJAX-FURN EU-COOLING FG-MACT-ZZZZZ FG-PARTICULATE

Appendix 7. Emission Calculations

Specific emission calculations to be used with monitoring, testing or recordkeeping data are detailed in the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, this appendix is not applicable.

Appendix 8. Reporting

A. Annual, Semiannual, and Deviation Certification Reporting

The permittee shall use the EGLE, AQD, Report Certification form (EQP 5736) and EGLE, AQD, Deviation Report form (EQP 5737) for the annual, semiannual and deviation certification reporting referenced in the Reporting Section of the Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Alternative formats must meet the provisions of Rule 213(4)(c) and Rule 213(3)(c)(i), respectively, and be approved by the AQD District Supervisor.

B. Other Reporting

Specific reporting requirement formats and procedures are detailed in Part A or the appropriate Source-Wide, Emission Unit and/or Flexible Group Special Conditions. Therefore, Part B of this appendix is not applicable.



Emission Systems O&M Preventive Maintenance Program

This is the preventive maintenance program for emission systems at CWC-Textron, 1085 West Sherman Blvd, Muskegon MI 49441.

The use of equipment checklists is the way all information regarding preventative maintenance observations are carried out.

Maintenance equipment checklists contain the following basic identification information:

Equipment number, description of system to be inspected, frequency of inspection, date of inspection, if the item is ok or needs repair, gage readings, comments section, notification to supervisor if problem, completed sheet checked, clock number of sheet checker and doc no.

Checklists are completed on a daily (some each shift) weekly, monthly, quarterly or semi-annual basis.

Blank equipment checklists are available in the maintenance office, and are stored in the EAM electronic maintenance program.

Procedure:

- The maintenance manager shall assign a supervisor to be responsible for carrying out this procedure.
- The maintenance supervisor will assign personnel to make the preventive maintenance inspections.
- The inspector will review all items and mark with a check in the appropriate box.
- The completed form is turned in to the maintenance supervisor, who will assign or schedule corrective action by use of the EAM computer maintenance program where a work order will be generated. The work order will include the date, repair and man-hours required.
- The supervisor in charge will identify any equipment requiring maintenance and give the completed checklist to the maintenance coordinator.
- The repairs will be carried on the open work order until the work has been completed.
- Completed copies of current year equipment checklists are maintained in the maintenance office and prior year records are held in the records storage area.

	CWC Textron Emission Systems O & M Program		
PM Schedule -	Description	Type	WO Type
5000-E-D-TUE	D - 3RD SHIFT - MR1 - PLANT TOUR - EQUIPMENT SHUTDOWN - D2 THRU D5	Duplicate	
5100-003-D3	D - 1ST SHIFT - MW - FOUNDRY DUST COLLECTOR - D3	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5510MR-2M	Q - 1ST W/E SHIFT - MR - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA INSPECTION - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5512-009	M - 1ST SHIFT - OIL - GREASE CUPOLA FAN SHAFT BEARINGS - 28 DAYS	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5512-010	Q - 1ST SHIFT - OIL - GREASE CUPOLA FAN MOTOR - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5512-2M	M - 3RD SHIFT - MRS - #1 CUPOLA BLOWER - WK2	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5513-001	Q - 3RD SHIFT - OIL - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA EMISSION FAN BEARINGS - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5513-2M	Q - 1ST W/E SHIFT - MR - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA EMISSION FAN - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5513-003	D - 3RD SHIFT - OIL - #1 CUPOLA EMISSION FAN MOTOR BEARING - D1 THRU D4	Duplicate	Preventive Maintenand
5514-2M	M - 3RD SHIFT - MW - # 1 CUPOLA EMISSION FAN MOTOR INSPECTIONS - WK2	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5514-001	M - 3RD SHIFT - OIL - CUPOLA ZURN FAN MOTOR GREASING - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5515-001	Q - MAINT. / SMF OC - DROP BOTTOM - WET CAP CLEANING - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5515-2M	M - 3RD SHIFT - MR5 - # 1 CUPOLA EMISSION DUCT INSPECTIONS - WK2	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5516-001	BW - 1ST SHIFT - MR - # 1 CUPOLA SCRUBBER INSPECTION - ODD	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5516-2M	Q - 1ST W/E SHIFT - MR - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA SCRUBBER INSPECTION - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
5516-002	Q - MEACHAM - OC - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA - DEMISTER PADS INSPECTION - WK2	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
516M - 8W	6 - 3RD SHIFT - MR- #1 CUPOLA DEMISTER INSPECTION	Variable	Preventive Maintenand
517-005	BW - 1ST SHIFT - MR - # 1 CUPOLA SEPARATOR INSPECTION - ODD	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
5517-2M	Q - 3RD SHIFT - MR - #1 CUPOLA SEPARATOR INSPECTION	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
519-1-2M	M - 3RD SHIFT - EL - #1 CUPOLA STACK BURNER - WK2	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
600-D	D - 1ST SHIFT - MR - DUST COLLECTORS TOUR - D1 THRU D5	Duplicate	Preventive Maintenance
765-D-MON	D - 2ND SHIFT - MR - PLANT TOUR EMISSION - D1 THRU D5	Duplicate	Preventive Maintenance
	W-2ND SHIFT - MR - PLANT TOUR EMISSION	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
	D - 1ST SHIFT - MR - PLANT TOUR - D1	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
800-001	M - 1ST SHIFT - OIL - DUST COLLECTORS 1,2,5,6,12,13,17,19,20 GREASING - WK1	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
819-001	BW - 2ND SHIFT - MW - # 19 DUST COLLECTOR MECHANICAL CHECK - EVEN	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
819-002	W - 1ST SHIFT - MW - # 19 DUST COLLECTOR MECH. CHECK	Variable	Preventive Maintenance
819-007	M - BOB MEACHAM - # 19 DUST COLLECTOR PIPE BUILD UP REVIEW	Variable	Autonomous Maintenand
	Updated 1/26/23		

The environmental department will record information daily by using the "Daily Environmental Check Sheet" 811.001 located in our "Power way" document control system and includes:

Static pressure for venturi scrubber and demister scrubber
Emission pump pressure
Magnesium Hydroxide flow rate
Static pressure readings for dust collectors: #1, #2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17, #19, #20
Visible emissions from all sources
NCC – emission probe readings for #1, #5, #6, #12, #13

And will record on a weekly basis:

Emission pond visible observations Fugitive dust observations

Deviations will be noted and corrective action taken.

Dry collectors #1, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17, #19, #20 will be black light tested on a semi-annual basis at summer shutdown and winter shutdown.

An outside contractor at a minimum of once a year will conduct detailed inspections of dust collectors and the cupola emission systems.

Checklists and Plant Map

The pages that follow contain the checklists mentioned above and a plant dust collector map.

Updated: 1/26/23

By: Robert Meacham

KT-MU	SKEG	NC	%		M	KG Pla	ant					
PM Cod	e Job	Туре										
5000-E-D-	TUE PM											
						Descriptio	n	-31 -				
D - 3RD SI	HIFT - MR	I - PLAI	NT TOUR - E	QUIF	PMEN	IT SHUTD	OWN -	D2 T	HRU [)5		
Cost Code	Equipment	D	escription	Loc	ation	Assigned	to CI	ass	Freq	UOM	Deactivated	
79	M5600	GENE	RAL PLANT			Α	WE	EKLY	1	WEEK		
Material List	Equipme	nt Part	Description	Bin	QTY	Available	QTY Ne	eded				
					Ta	ask Instruct	ions					
B) IF A	NY DISCR FORM TH	EPANC E FOLL	LOCKOUT / IES ARE FOU OWING TAS DER DENVER	JND KS	IMM	EDIATELY	CONTA			SUPERV	ISOR.	
SAND SYS	TEM: ENSU 211 - MOI	JRE HE/ .D DUM	ARGE DOOR! ATER PACKA IP CONVEY(GES					: OFF			
	SHUTDO LEAVE BE	WN ZU ARING	JRN FAN WATER ON GNESIUM H		OXID	E						
TUESD	AY W	'EDSNE	DAY THU	IRSD	ΑΥ	FRIDAY	′					

5100-003	- D3 PM							
	A STATE OF S	and the second s		Description	n .		.02. 4	
D - 1st 5H	IFT - MW -	FOUNDRY DRY	DUST CO	LLECTOR - I	03			
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
01	M5100	SAND SYSTEM		AA-MW	DAILY	1	WEEK	Aug 17, 2011 12:00:00 AM
	10000	helle (MKG)(MG	(C) (C)			****		
B) PERFOR	M THE FOL	LOWING TASKS						w
				OR DRY DU:	ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C	PERATION		ECTION F	or dry du:	ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C	PERATION CK FOR LO	VISUALLY INSPE POSE FASTENERS CONDITION	CTION FO	or dry du:	ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C 1) CHE 2) CHE 3) CHE	PERATION CK FOR LO CK DRIVE (CK MOTOR	VISUALLY INSPE POSE FASTENERS CONDITION R FOR HOT OR N	CTION FO		ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C 1) CHE 2) CHE 3) CHE	PERATION CK FOR LO CK DRIVE (CK MOTOR CK BELTS -	VISUALLY INSPE POSE FASTENERS CONDITION R FOR HOT OR N GOOD OR SLIPF	CTION FO		ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C 1) CHE 2) CHE 4) CHE 5) CHE	PERATION CK FOR LO CK DRIVE (CK MOTOF CK BELTS - CK SHEAVE	VISUALLY INSPE POSE FASTENERS CONDITION R FOR HOT OR N GOOD OR SLIPF E WARE	CCTION FO	MISSING #_	ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;
DURING C 1) CHE 2) CHE 3) CHE 5) CHE 5) CHE	PERATION CK FOR LO CK DRIVE (CK MOTOR CK BELTS - CK SHEAVE CK BEARIN	VISUALLY INSPE POSE FASTENERS CONDITION R FOR HOT OR N GOOD OR SLIPF	ECTION FO IOISEY PING OR I	MISSING #_	ST COLL	ECTOI	RS # 1, #	£2, #5, #6, #12, #13, #17;

•

KT-MUS	SKEGO	N %	MK	G Meltin	g			
PM Code	Job Typ	е						
5510MR-2	м РМ							
			De	escription				
Q - 1ST W/	Æ SHIFT - I	MR - DROP BOTTOM	# 1 CUPC	LA INSPECT	ION - WK1			
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5510	#1 CUPOLA (WEST)		Α	QUARTRLY	3	MONTH	
Material List	Equipment	Part Description Bir	QTY Av	ailable QTY	Needed			
	122000		Task	Instructions				
B) IF ANY C) PERFO INSTRUCTI service. Th	Y DISCREPA PRM THE FO ONS: Thes nis docume down) WES YERE CHECK	PER LOCKOUT / TAGO NOCIES ARE FOUND II DLLOWING TASKS e ckecks and tests ne ent is not complete un ST (#1)	MMEDIAT	COMPLETED CONTA	on the cupola	whic		to go back into
2) 3) 4) 6) 6)		5)			_			
WATER SYS YES NC PANEL ALA ======= CUPOLA GO 1 CAP OPE) RM CHECK =====: DING INTO NING AND	K AJAX PIN CHE YES N (EAS	io T ok ====== Yes	NO	======= WEST OK	_		====
3) OXYGEN	I SYSTEM \	WORKING			=======	====	======	===
FORM.	CESSFUL R	E-CERTIFICATION OF			ICE" CUPOLA	, COM	IPLETE AN	D SIGN THIS
MELTING:			MAINTE	NANCE:				
_		pervisors Signiture)	_	(Mainte	nance Super	visors	Signiture)

KT-MUS	SKEGO	N	%	M	KG M	elting				
PM Code	Job Type									
5512-009	PM									
					Description	on				
M - 1ST SH	IIFT - OIL -	GREAS	SE CUPOLA	FAN SHA	FT BEARI	NGS - 28 DA	YS			
Cost Code	Equipment		Descriptio	n	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5512	#1 Cu	ipola Charg	e Blower		Α	MONTHLY	28	DAYS	
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description	Bin QT	/ Available	QTY Needed				
				Т	ask Instruc	tions				
B) IF ANY I C) PERFOR	DISCRPANO M THE FOL	CIES AF	NG TASKS	IMMEDIA		NTACT YOU				
			Rease (USE Cupola bl			CUPOLA BLO	OWER FAN B	EARIN	IGS USI	NG THE
			00405 SHEL		S5 V100 (GREASE				
GR	EASE THE 2	FAN S	SHAFT BEA	RINGS.						

KT-MUSKEGON % **MKG Melting** PM Code Job Type 5512-010 PM Description Q - 1ST SHIFT - OIL - GREASE CUPOLA FAN MOTOR - WK1* Cost Code Equipment Description UOM Deactivated Location Assigned to Class Freq 27 M5512 #1 Cupola Charge Blower QUARTRLY 12 **WEEK** Material List Equipment Part Description Bin QTY Available QTY Needed Task Instructions

5512-010

- A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT/TAGOUT
- B) IF ANY DISCRPANCIES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CONTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR
- C) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASK
- 1. USING CWC#OILS000405 SHELL GADUS S5 V100 GREASE
- 2. USING A MANUAL GREASE GUN ON THE VOLUME SETTING INSERT 11 PUMPS FROM THE GUN INTO EACH OF THE MOTOR BEARINGS (2).
- 3. GREASE IN IAW (SEE ATTACHED DOCUMENT)

KT-MU	SKEGO	N	%	M	KG M	elting				
PM Code	Job Type									
5512-2M	PM									
	la security de la constant de la con				Description	on	**************************************			
M - 3RD S	HIFT - MR5	-#10	CUPOLA BLO	OWER - \	NK2					
Cost Code	Equipment		Description		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5512	#1 Cu	pola Charge	Blower		Α	MONTHLY	1	MONTH	
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description			QTY Needed				
				Т	ask Instruc	tions				
5512-2M	DI ETE DD 0	NED 1 0	CKOUT / TA	COLIT	DOCEDIL	\ F				
1) Ch	eck All Dan	npers F	VING TASKS For Smooth (& Closing	3				
2) Ch	eck All Duc	ting Fo	or Excess We	ar						
3) Ch	eck Blower	For Ex	cess Vibratio	on						
4) Ch	eck Dampe	r Cylin	der Shaft Cl	evis & Pi	n For Exce	ess Wear				
5) Ch	eck Inlet Da	amper	For Build Up	On Scr	een					
6) Ch	eck Inlet Da	amper	For Proper (Opening	& Closeir	ng				
7) Ch	eck Mounts	s Bolts	For Blower I	Motor						
8) Ke	ep Blower F	Room (Cleaned Out	At All Ti	mes					
9) CH	IECK EXPAI	NSION	RUBBER FO	R CRACK	S. DEFEC	TS. TIGHT IN	ISTALLATIO	N		

KT-MUSKEGON % MKG Melting. PM Code | Job Type 5513-001 PM Description M - 3rd SHIFT - OILER - # 1 CUPOLA EMISSION FAN BEARINGS Cost Code | Equipment Description Location | Assigned to Class Freq UOM Deactivated 27 M5513 #1 Cupola Emission Fan AA-OIL MONTHLY 1 MONTH Material List | Equipment | Part | Description | Bln | QTY Available | QTY Needed Task Instructions A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE B) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASKS 1) ___ DRAIN OIL AND FILL WITH NEW, SHOULD BE MID-LEVEL ON SIGHT GLASS TAKES OILS00046

KT-MU	SKEGO	ON % N	NKG N	lelting_					
PM Code	Job Type	and one man comme so more statement	a an an an significant for the significant and the significant for	and the second s	Markor Ferences	CONTRACT.	NAMES OF THE PARTY		
5513-2M	PM								į
; 			Descript	tion	. v g				.]
	THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF TH	# 1 CUPOLA EMISSION FA	N	THE STATE OF THE S	Market Commence of		Description of the Property of	والمعادلة والمراد والمرادة وا	.
Cost Code		Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	MON	Deactivated	1
Material Liet	M5513	# 1 Cupola Emission Fan	Derca tarterophitres	AA-MR	QUARTRLY	1	N/A		
Material List	Lquipmen	Part Description Bin QT	Y Available Task Instru	THE PERSON OF THE PARTY NAMED IN	<u> </u>			·	- 1
A) COMPL	ETE PROPE	R LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PR							1
•									
B) PERFOR	M THE FOL	LOWING TASKS							ii
NOTE: CUP	OLA BOTT	OM MUST BE DROPPED FO	OR THESE	TASKS TO	BE STARTED.			8	
1) Che	ock Boots C	On Incoming & Out Going S	idea Of F	·					11
17CII6	:CK DOOLS C	on incoming & Out Going 5	sides Of F	·an					
2) Che	ck Ducting	To Staeck							
3) Che	ck Fan Bea	rings, Mount Bolts							ij
4) Che	ck Fan For	Vibration							
5) Che	ck Fan Run	ner For Build Up On Blade	es						
6) Che	ck Guillotir	ne Blades & Guides							
7) Che	ck Guillotin	e Cylinder,Hoses.							
8) Chec	ck Louver C	Coupling, Bearings & Linka	ge						
9) Chec	k Louvers	& Louver Action							
10) Che	eck Oil Leve	el & Water Flow							
		lozzles To Fan & Drains Ar	e Open	. 255.447 FE 25.25	1212/2006 (17.1)		·	a on beers	

PM Code	Job Type										
5513-003											
3313 003					Description	n					
D - 3RD SH	HIFT - OIL -	#1 CU	POLA EMIS	SION	I FAN MOTOR		- D1 THRU I	04			
Cost Code	Equipment			criptic		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27		#1 Cu	pola Emissi	on F	an - ZURN FAN		Α	WEEKLY		WEEK	
Material List		_			QTY Available		ed				
American American Line Section (American)	ndermoniscozum annonis			Principal Communication of	Task Instructi	ions					
B) IF AN' C) PERFC 1) CH	Y DISCREPA ORM THE FO ECK OIL IN	NCIES LLOW SIGHT	ARE FOUN ING TASKS GLASS FO	D IM	UT PROCEDURI IMEDIATELY CO EARINGS, OIL S	ONTACT YO	E MID-LEVE		TELLU	IS S2 M	
B) IF AN' C) PERFC 1) CH	Y DISCREPA ORM THE FO ECK OIL IN	NCIES LLOW SIGHT	ARE FOUN ING TASKS GLASS FO	D IM	IMEDIATELY CO	ONTACT YO	E MID-LEVE		TELLU	IS S2 M	
B) IF AN' C) PERFC 1) CH 46" (OILS0	Y DISCREPA ORM THE FO ECK OIL IN	NCIES DLLOW SIGHT ARE 4	ARE FOUN /ING TASKS GLASS FOI SIGHT GLA	D IM	IMEDIATELY CO	ONTACT YO	E MID-LEVE		TELLU	IS S2 M	

KT-MU	SKEGO	N	%		MKG	Melti	ng				
PM Code	Job Type										
5514-2M	PM										
					Desc	ription					
M - 3RD S	HIFT - MW	- # 1 0	UPOLA EM	ISSIC	ON FAN M	OTOR II	ISPECTIONS	- WK2			
Cost Code	Equipment		Descrip	tion		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5514	#1 Cu	ipola Emissi	on F	an Motor		Α	MONTHLY	1	MONTH	
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description	Bin	QTY Avail	able QT	Y Needed				
					Task In	structions					
•			CKOUT / TA				FACT YOUR S	SUPERVISOR.			
C) PERFC	RM THE FO	OLLOV	VING TASKS	5							
1) Che	eck Couplir	ng Bolt	s & Hub								
2) Che	eck Motor	Mount	Bolts								

	SKEGO						ng				
PM Code	Job Type										
5514-001	PM										
					Desc	cription					
6MTH - 3F	RD SHIFT - 0	OIL - CUF	OLA ZUR	N FAN	MOTOI	R GREASI	NG - WK1				
Cost Code	Equipment		Descrip	tion		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5514	#1 Cupo	ola Emissi	on Fan	Motor		Α	6-MONTH	6	MONTH	
Material List	Equipment	Part D	escription	Bin C	QTY Availa	able QTY	Needed				
					Task Ins	structions					
B) IF AN	PLETE PROF Y DISCREPA DRM THE FO	NCIES A	RE FOUN	D IMM			ACT YOUR	SUPERVISOR.	·		
B) IF AN	Y DISCREPA	NCIES A	RE FOUN	D IMM			ACT YOUR	SUPERVISOR.			
B) IF AN C) PERFO	Y DISCREPA	NCIES A	RE FOUN NG TASKS	D IMM	1ediatei	LY CONTA					

5515-0	01 PM									
	22-22-1-1-2-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1			Description	to a sec or consistent	TOTAL SE NOT THE STATE	er i i i i i i i	ii 9 - 5		
Q - MA	INT. / SMF	OC - DROP B	оттом - у	VET CAP CLEANING	G - WK1	I THE CHARLES	The state of the s		1	
Cost Code	Equipment		Descrip	tion	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5515	#1 Cupola WET CAP	Emission D	uct - VENTURI -		Α	QUARTRLY	3	MONTH	
Material	List Equipme	ent Part Des	scription Bin	QTY Available Q	TY Needed	22.	20 VIII 1		3.44 32	
	E	7 23	2 200 8 200 00	Task Instruction	s	PSEAR REPORTER OF	1000 S 9 1000 (0.00			
	01									
A) CO		OPER LOCKO	DUT / TAGO	OUT PROCEDURE						
	OMPLETE PR			OUT PROCEDURE	TACT YOU	r Supervi	SOR.			
B) IF A	OMPLETE PRO		E FOUND IN		ITACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			
B) IF A	OMPLETE PRO	PANCIES ARE	E FOUND IN		ITACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			

PM Code	e Job Type								
5515-2N	M PM								
			Description						
M - 3RD	SHIFT - MR	85 - # 1 CUPOLA	EMISSION DUCT INSPE	CTIONS - V	VK2				
Cost Code	Equipment	[Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5515	#1 Cupola Emiss WET CAP	ion Duct - VENTURI -		Α	MONTHLY	1	MONTH	
Material L	ist Equipme	nt Part Descriptio	n Bin QTY Available QT	Y Needed					
			Task Instructions						
1)	CHECK / CL	FOLLOWING TAS EAN OUT LONG T TING FOR SIGNS	ROUGH OF ANY DEBRIS						
4) 5)	CHECK CAP	DRAIN FOR EXCE	N JOINTS FOR WORN BO	OTS = CA	P				
4) (5) (6) (CHECK CAP CHECK CAP	DRAIN FOR EXCE	SSS WEAR	OTS = CA	P				
4) (5) (6) (7) (7)	CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP	DRAIN FOR EXCE CABLE & CABLE S STOPS PIVOT PINS & BU	SSS WEAR		P				
4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (6)	CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP	DRAIN FOR EXCE CABLE & CABLE S STOPS PIVOT PINS & BU CYLINDER : ROD	SSS WEAR SHEAVES FOR WEAR SSHINGS	SHINGS		NE			
(4) (5) (6) (7)	CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP CHECK CAP	DRAIN FOR EXCE CABLE & CABLE S STOPS PIVOT PINS & BU CYLINDER : ROD CYLINDER : FOR I	SSS WEAR SHEAVES FOR WEAR SHINGS END, CLEVIS PINS & BUS	SHINGS OF AIR LII	NES = COI		CTION	I	

Organization KT-MUSKEGON **WORK ORDER** Location Job Type PM Report Date Mar 2, 2023 Assign To % Page # 17 2786406 27 BW - 1ST SHIFT - MR - # 1 CUPOLA SCRUBBER INSPECTION - ODD 5516-001 PM M5516 #1 Cupola Scrubber Mar 18, 2023 12:00:00 AM Scheduled End Date: EMP ID **MDONSELAR** Created By: DATE **BIWEEKLY** Work Order Class: HOURS Assigned to code: AA-MR Assigned to name: Machine Repair Requested By: A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE B) IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CONTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR. C) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASKS Check All Boots & Ducting For Worn Spots 2) _ Check Cone For Excess Wear 3) ___ Check Cone For Proper SetTING 4) __ Check Scrubber For Build Up 5)____Check Scrubber For Excess Wear

BW - 1ST SHIFT - MR - # 1 CUPOLA SCRUBBER INSPECTION - ODD

Materials

Part

Des

Bin

Requested Qty Qty on-hand

KT-MU	SKEGO	N %	_MKG	i Meltin	9			
PM Code	Job Type	and the state of t		er o leva la calendar de la calendar	ok will As and Alfred Co. (1994)	Зо д лефакт	north Early Sta	
5516-2M	PM							
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Des	scription				
Q - 3rd SH	IIFT - MR -	# 1 CUPOLA SCRUBBE	R INSPEC	TION				
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
27	M5516	# 1 Cupola Scrubber	Photosia province - Principal and	AA-MR	QUARTRLY	1	N/A	L j
Material List	Equipment	Part Description Bin	QTY Avai	lable QTY N	eeded			
B) PERFOR	M THE FOI	R LOCKOUT / TAGOUT LOWING TASKS OM MUST BE DROPPE S & Ducting For Worn	D FOR TH		TO BE START	ED.		N.
1		or Excess Wear						
		r For Build Up						
5) Chec	k Scrubbe	r For Excess Wear				-		-

KT-MUSKEGON % MKG Melting
PM Code Job Type
5516-002 PM
Description
Q - MEACHAM - OC - DROP BOTTOM # 1 CUPOLA - DEMISTER PADS INSPECTION - WK2
Cost Code Equipment Description Location Assigned to Class Freq UOM Deactivated
27 M5516 #1 Cupola Scrubber A QUARTRLY 1 N/A
Material List Equipment Part Description Bin QTY Available QTY Needed
Task Instructions 5516-002
A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE
B) IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CONTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR.C) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASKS
C) TERFORM THE FOLLOWING (ASKS
1)Check pads are lying down in the grid framework with no gaps larger than 1 inch between pads
2)Check iron angle braces are in good condition
A) Not broken
7)Not bloken
D) Still attack ad to the well
B)Still attached to the wall
C)Located in the proper position holding down the demister pads from movement.
3)Check the underside of the demister pads
A)Are the water sprays contacting the bottom of the pads
B)Are all spray heads spraying water
4)Any other issues noted about the pads or water system report back to Bob Meacham

KT-MU	SKEG	ON %	MKC	Meltin	g				
PM Code	Job Type	9			PROGRAMA CONTRACTOR CO		6035 N. FERROS		20.,
5516M-8	W PM								
			De	scription				(g)	
6 - 3rd SH	IFT - MR -	# 1 CUPOLA DEMISTER	INSPECT	ION		,			
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated	ĺ
27	M5516	#1 Cupola Scrubber		AA-MR	6-MONTH	6	MONTH		
Material List	Equipmen	Part Description Bin	QTY Avai	lable QTY N	eeded	·	K . 11.22 12. 1	*	ı
Task Instructions									
MANNING: 1 ON BURNER / 1 ON WATCH / 1 ON CLEANING									
TO COMPLETE THIS TASK THE FOLLOWING IS REQUIRED:									
RENTAL OF STEAM JENNIE FROM REDI RENTAL, [REF. P.O. # 72387]									
INCLUDE 1	50 FOOT C	F STANDARD HIGH PR	RESSURE	HOSE FROM	REDI RENTA	AL			
A) COMPLI	TE BOODE	LOCKOUT (TACOUT	20000						
A) COMITE	TE PROPE	R LOCKOUT / TAGOUT	PROCED	UKE					j
									i
B) PERFORI	M THE FOL	LOWING TASKS							ĺ
1) CHE	CK DEMIS	TER PADS TO ENSURE	THEY ARE	SECURLY F	ASTENED				
2) CHE	CK INSIDE	DEMISTER TO ENSURE	THERE IS	NO DEBRIS	- CAREFULI	LY REN	MOVE IF FO	DUND	1
3) VIS	UALLY INSI	PECT NOZZLES FOR DA	MAGE						

Organization	KT-MUSKE	GON	WORK ORDE	:R	Location	
Job Type Assign To	PM %				Report Date	Mar 2, 2023
	70				Page #	18
2786407				27		
5517-005		BW - 1ST SHIFT - MR - #	# 1 CUPOLA SEPAR	ATOR INSPECT	ON - ODD	
PM			2			-
M5517 #	#1 Cupola	Separator - Demister - VE	ENTURI			
Scheduled En	d Date: M	ar 18, 2023 12:00:00 AM			EMP ID	
Created By:		DONSELAR			DATE	
Work Order Cl. Assigned to co		WEEKLY			HOURS	
Assigned to co		A-MR achine Repair		Requested By:		
			Tasks	Requested by.		
B) IF ANY I	DISCREPANCI	CKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE ES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CO DWING TASKS	NTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR	₹.		,
,			₩.		*	N N
NOTE: CUPOLA	а воттом м	UST BE DROPPED FOR THESE TASI	KS TO BE STARTED.			
1) Check A	all Boots & Du	cting For Worn Spots				
2) Check A	ll Emission Di	ain Lines To Pond For Leaks & Wo	orn Sections			
3) Check M	fount Bolts Fo	or Motors & Pumps				
4) Check Pa	acking Glands	For Leakage				
5) Check Pu	ımp Pressure	Should Be At 55 To 60 P.S.I.				
6) Check Se	parator For F	lugged Screens				
7) Check Sh	ieaves, Vee B	elts For Wear & Alignment				
8) Check Su	b Pumps					
9) CHECK D	DEMISTER PAI	DS TO ENSURE THEY ARE SECURLY	/ FASTENED			
10) CHECK	INSIDE DEMI	STER TO ENSURE THERE IS NO DE	BRIS - CAREFULLY REMOV	E IF FOUND		
11) <u>-</u> VISUAL	LY INSPECT N	OZZLES FOR DAMAGE				
M _ 19T 9UIF	T_MP #	I CUDOLA SEDADATOR INC	DECTION COD			
W - 131 3HIF	1 - IVIT - #	CUPOLA SEPARATOR INS	SPECTION - ODD Materials			
art		Desc		Bin	Requested Qty Q	ty on-hand

PM Code	Job Type		lelting	(2.15 to 10.152)				
5517-2M								
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	denne greene rooms al.		 Hon					1
Q - 3rd SH	IIFT - MR -	# 1 CUPOLA SEPARATOR INSPECTION	• • • • • • •	- 341		¥6	¥	1
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	**************	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivate
27	M5517	#1 Cupola Separator [Demister]		AA-MR	QUARTRLY	1	N/A	
Material List	Equipment	Part Description Bin QTY Available	QTY Ne	eded	، بیسته دا		1	
es Kha	ete son son	Task Instru				-		
A) COMPL	ETE PROPE	R LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE	•					7
R) PERFOR	M THE FOI	LOWING TASKS						
-,, 2 0	(112102	LOWING TASKS						1
NOTE: CUP	OLA BOTT	OM MUST BE DROPPED FOR THESE	TASKS T	O BE START	ED.			ĺ
l) Che	rk All Boot	s & Ducting For Worn Spots						1
/ cnc	city iii boot	a pacing for worn apois						İ
()Che	ck All Emis	sion Drain Lines To Pond For Leaks 8	& Worn S	ections				ļ
) Chec	rk Mount B	olts For Motors & Pumps						
,		our of motors & Lamps						1
) Chec	k Packing	Glands For Leakage						i
) Chec	k Pumn Pr	essure Should Be At 55 To 60 P.S.I.						
	act ump t to	C3301 C 3110010 DE AL 33 10 00 F.S.I.						
) Chec	k Separato	r For Plugged Screens						
) Chec	k Sheaves	Vee Belts For Wear & Alignment						İ
	1160163,	rea pere for Mear & Wilklittell						:

KT-MU	SKEGO	N	%		MKC	3 Me	eltin	g				
PM Code	Job Type											
5519-1-2N	5519-1-2M PM											
Description												
M - 3RD S	HIFT - EL - :	# 1 CU	POLA STAC	K BI	JRNER -	WK2			_		,	
Cost Code	Equipment		Description	_	Location	Assign	ned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated	
27	M5510	_	JPOLA (WES									
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description	Bin	-		-	Needed				
5510 1 2N	Task Instructions 5519-1-2M											
A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE B) IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CONTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR.												
C) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASKS 1) Check All Panel Indicator Lights												
1) Cne	eck All Pan	el India	cator Lights									
2) Che	eck Burner	Ignitio	n									
3) Che	eck Burner	Modu	lation									
4) Che	ck Combu	stion E	Blower									
5) Che	eck Maxon	Valve	Operation									
6) Che	ck Modula	tion O	f Combusti	on A	Air							
7) Che	eck Purge C	ycle										
8) Che	ck Spark P	lug Co	nnections									
9) Che	ck Thermo	couple	e Signal At I	Barb	er Colma	an Uni	t					
10) Ch	eck Vent V	alve'										
11) Ch	eck All Wir	e Con	nections At	Sta	ck Burne	r And	Main	Controls				

KT-MU	SKEGO	N	%	MK	KG Main	tenand	е					
PM Code	Job Type											
5600-D I	PM											
					Description							
D - 1ST SH	D - 1ST SHIFT - MR - DUST COLLECTORS TOUR - D1 THRU D5											
Cost Code	Equipment	D	escription	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated			
44	M5800	ENVIR	ONMENTAL	4	Α	WEEKLY	1	WEEK				
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description E	Bin QTY A	vailable QT	Y Needed						
				Tas	k Instructions							
A) COMPLETE PROPER LOCKOUT / TAGOUT PROCEDURE B) IF ANY DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND IMMEDIATELY CONTACT YOUR SUPERVISOR C) PERFORM THE FOLLOWING TASKS Cleaning Rm - #1 & #2 DUST COLLECTORS - Visually Check For Stack Emissions And Leaks (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor) 1) Record #1 Manometer Reading:												
1			_									
Mon	Tue	Wed	Thurs	Fri	(If <5.0 -	>12.0 Con	tact Yo	our Sup	ervisor)			
2) Check #1 Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure												
Mon	Tue\	Wed	Thurs	Fri	_1							
3) Record #	#2 Manom	eter Re	eading:									
Mon	Tue\	Wed	Thurs	Fri	_ (If <3.0 - :	>10.0 Con	tact Yo	our Sup	ervisor)			
4) Check #	2 Air Pulse	Unit O	peration - Re	cord Inle	t Air Pressu	re						
	LEANING F		Thurs - #5 DUST CO		 R Manomete	er Reading	s: (If <	3.0 - >1	0.0 Contact	Your		
Mon	Tue\	Ved	Thurs	Fri	_							
6) KNOCK	OFF - #6	DUST (COLLECTOR \	isually Cl	neck For Sta	ıck Emissic	ns An	d Leaks				
Mon	Гие V	Ved	Thurs	Fri	_ (If Visible	Emissions	Conta	ct Your	Supervisor)			
7) Record #	6 Manome	eter Re	ading: (If <5.	0 - >12.0	Contact You	ır Supervis	or)					
Mon	Гие V	Ved	Thurs	Fri	_							
8) Check #6 Fri	Air Pulse	Unit O	peration - Re	cord Inle	t Air Pressui	re Mon	Tue	<u></u> \	Wed T	hurs		
			NOTE*** DO DWN OPERAT				tack Er	missions	s And Leaks			
Mon1	ue V	Ved	Thurs	_ Fri	_ (If Visible	Emissions	Conta	ct Your	Supervisor)			

KT-MUSKEGON % MKG Maintenance

Task Instructions
10) #11 BOND RECEIVER - NOTE*** DOES NOT HAVE A MANOMETER Inspect RECEIVER For Misc. Failures such as Loose Fasteners, Missing Guards, Etc.Check Air Pulse Unit Operation. Visually Check For Stack Emissions And Leaks
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor)
11) ACS VACUUM - #12 DUST COLLECTOR Visually Check For Stack Emissions And Leaks (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor) Record #12 Manometer Reading:
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If <14.0 - >20.0 Contact Your Supervisor)
Check #12 Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure (Operating Pressure 85 - 100 Psi, Adjust Regulator If Necessary)
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri(If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor)
12)FINAL BLAST - #13 DUST COLLECTOR Visually Check For Stack Emissions And Leaks (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor)
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri
Record #13 Manometer Readings: (IF <5.0 - >13.0 Contact Your Supervisor)
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri
Check #13 Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure (Operating Pressure 85 - 100 Psi, Adjust Regulator If Necessary)
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri
13)#17 SHAKEOUT DUST COLLECTOR Inspect Collector For Misc. Failures (Loose Fasteners, Missing Guards, Etc.) Check Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure:
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor)
14)#19 DUST COLLECTOR - Record #19 Manometer Reading:
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If <2.0 - >10.0 Contact Your Supervisor)
Check #19 Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri 15) VIBRA DRUM - #20 DUST COLLECTOR Visually Check For Stack Emissions And Leaks
Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor) Record #20 Manometer Readings: (IF <2.0 - >10.0 Contact Your Supervisor) Mon Tue Wed Thurs Fri (If Visible Emissions Contact Your Supervisor) 16) Check #20 Air Pulse Unit Operation - Record Inlet Air Pressure (Operating Pressure 85 - 100 Psi, Adjust Regulator If Necessary)

sk Instructions
No IF YES MAINT.SUPV NOTIFY EHS
Yes No IF YES MAINT. SUPV NOTIFY EHS

KT-MUS	SKEG	ON	%	M	KG Pla	ant				
PM Code	Job	Туре								
5765-D-M	ON PM									
					Descriptio	n				
D - 2ND SI	HIFT - MI	R - PLA	ANT TOUR EM	SSION - I						
Cost Code			Description	_	Assigned		Freq	UOM	Deactivated	1
	M5600	_	NERAL PLANT	Location			-		Deactivated	
			and reposition of the proposition of the party of the par	D: O.D.	Α	WEEKLY	1	WEEK		
Material List	Equipme	ent Pa	art Description	THE RESIDENCE OF THE PARTY OF T	-					
					ask Instruct	ons				
B) IF ANY I C) PERFOR 1)(2)(3) A) VERI B) VERIF C) VERIF	DISCREPA M THE F KAISER I CHECK A CHECK A IFY TILT V FY HYD. S TY PIVOT CHECK C	ANCIE OLLOV ROOM JAX FU AJAX F VALVE SYS FC POIN UPOL	OCKOUT / TAG S ARE FOUND WING TASKS I CHECK THE H JRNACE HYDR URNACE TILT IS WORKING OR TILT IS WOR TS FOR TILT AI A EMISSION W	IMMEDIA JEATER AI AULIC OI CYLINDER PROPERL RKING PRO RE LUBRIC ATER, DR	ND FAN C L LEVEL RS FOR LE Y OPERLY CATED RAINS, AN	ONLY AKS D COOLING	WATE			
EMISSION 8) L 9) V 10)	PIT SUM LISTEN FO 'ISUAL CI CHECK E	P PUM OR LO HECK MISSI	OSE/SQUEALII OF EMISSION ON PUMP DIS	NG BELTS PUMP FO CHARGE F	R LEAKIN PRESURE /	G MECH. SEA	al Shoui	LD BE 70	0+	ECK
11) CHECK PUMP AMP DRAW AT ELC. PANEL SHOULD BE = 62 AMPS +/- 2 AMPS 12) HEATERS AND PUMP PITS FOR EXCESS WATER. 13) IN ZURN FAN ROOM - RECORD THE AMP READING ON THE LOG 14) CHECK TO MAKE SURE VENTURI PANEL IS POWERED ON (LOCATED IN BLOWER ROOM) BUMP OPEN BUTTON TO MAKE SURE VENTURI IS WORKING. 15) Check Ajax Bac Operation Of Pumps, Fans, Water Flow. 16) Check Bac Chemicals. 17) Check Ceramic Tower And Tuyere Pumps.										
18)I - RECORD Mon. G.P.M	MAG. HY MAG. H I. (If No R Check B r New Sa Check Pc OPANE	TDROX IYDRO T eading ond Sy and Sy ond W VAPO	(IDE ROOM - C OXIDE FLOW M Tue. G.P.M G Contact Your ystem. Check stem. ater Level. POI RIZERS	EHECK PU ETER REA V Supervis For Leaks	MP OPER DING : Ved. G.P.N or) , Bad Boo	Λsters Etc N	_ Thu	r. G.P.M Sure You		
			E PRESSURE. PSI_V	Ved	DCI -	Thur	рс	l Fri	DCI	(If Relow
			visor	·cu	۲31	u		- Hills		עוו הבנהאא

JRE (Desired PSI 55-70)	NO r PSI
PSI Thur PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Fri PSI Thur PSI Wed PSI Thur PSI Wed PSI Thur PSI Wed PSI Thur PSI Wed PSI Thur	NO r PSI
PSI Wed PSI Thu SSURE (Desired PSI 28-32) PSI Wed PSI Thu	
PSI Wed PSI Thu	ır PSI
PSI Wed PSI Thui	
	_
	3.0 - 10.0) TWThF THURSDAY FRIDAY dings? Yes No

KT-MU	ISKEGO	DN %	M	KG Plai	it.						
PM Code	Job Type					9384333	#99 2 7620		A CHARLES	Spekkik	/ Wederl
: 5766-D											
: Programmer	NAMES OF THE PARTY			2				ž			"1
			2 2	Description					, .		
W - 2nd 5	HIFT - MR -	- PLANT TOUR EMI	SSION								i
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivate	ed	-	
79	M5600	GENERAL PLANT		AA-MR	WEEKLY	1	WEEK				
Material Lis	t Equipment	Part Description	Bin QTY	Available Q	TY Needed	-		lee se			
. mountained, elangerating	estanta en el especial	and the section of th		ask Instruction		·			-	· · · · · ·	. !
DAILY PM	- 2nd Shift	, MACHINE REPAIR	, 	RF	VISED ON	• 7/77	/06 1/1	7/06		1.34	- 1
INSTRUCT		, its termite ites and		116	VIDED ON	. 41.44	700, 17	7700,			!
INITIAI	L COMPLET	ED TASKS ON THE	LINE PRO	OVIDED. ON	FRONT C)F PM					ļ
		HOURS - ENTERY					MPLET	ED			
		AREA - TOBER									1
DOCUN	MENT NON-	EMERGENCY ISSU	ES / Write	COMPLETE	D Repairs	Startin	ng With	- DONE			i.
INITIAL											ĺ
		NTAC COMPRESSO		K COOLING	WATER O	PERAT	NOI &				}
		UR METER READIN			MATER 5		-				İ
		NTAC COMPRESSO OUR METER READIN		COOLING	WATER OF	PERATI	S NO				1
		ER COMPRESSORS		DED ON LE	VEL AID C	LTED /	CONIDIT	ION			
		OUR METERS: #			#65		CONDI	ION			1
		FURNACE HYDRA			#O.	′—			-		1
		FURNACE TILT CY			NG.						i
		la Emission Water,									;
		ERATING CUPOLA					ADINGS				ļ
C	PERATING	CUPOLA NO				L	ow				;
2.11		(If No Read				9.3					;
		ween HIGH & LO					ence is a	greater th	an		
		our MAINTENANC ROOM - " At-Start					Dandin				
		BEARING (MILS)		. Record v	וטואנוטוו מ	amp.	Keadin	gs on log	snee	E.	
		BEARING (MILS) _			- [RANG	SE LES	MAHT 2	2.0 MILS	1.		
		Bac's Operation Of				JL LLJ.	2 1117114	2.0 1/1123			1
	heck Bac C		1-2								1
		nic Tower And Tuy		ps.							í
		ion Pit Sump Pum									i
		ion Pond Water Ch									1
		XIDE ROOM - CHE									ĺ
-		MAG. HYDROXIDE			NG: G.P.N	и					ì
(r) ch		Reading Contact Y									İ
		ystem Over Daily.									!
		You Have Spare B nd System Over Da									1
7)Che			ny. Chec	K FULLEAKS,	Dau DOOS	reiz El	٠				l
		APORIZERS									1
		PUMP OPERATING	S YES	NO							1
		OT OPERATING - V			-	? YF	5 1	NO			ĺ
20) REC	CORD LINE	PRESSURE.	PSI	(If Below	45 psi, Cor	ntact Y	our Su				:
!1) RE	CORD TUY	ERE PUMP PRESSU	RE	<u> </u>	PSI , (De)			ļ
	17.2707.007	to a the contract market on the contract of the				1. 247. **	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	wi-w •	11 T L	4.1.	: "! .

KT-MI	JSKEGON — % MKG Plant				
				5.2.2.15	
(· · · · ·	Task Instructions				
22)	RECORD MARLEY TOWER PUMP PRESSURE	PSI, (Desired PSI)	•	. 1
: ₍₂₃₎	RECORD WET COLLECTOR PUMP PRESSURE	PSI, (Desired PSI)		;

KT-MU	SKEGO)N %	M	KG Plar	it .					
PM Code	Job Type				CONTROL OF THE CONTROL OF THE CONTROL				MANAGEMENT CONTROL	**************************************
5600-010	PM	·								
ļ				Description]
D - 1st 5H	IFT - MR - I	PLANT TOUR - D1	THE WATER PERSON NAMED OF SEC	Theres in the 2 the Sanctum For the	d Proposition (1982) as	of the contract of	Complete Security		ger	.
Cost Code	Equipment	Description	Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated		
79	M5600	GENERAL PLANT	ne un ancea pice reasa nese;	AA-MR	DAILY	1	WEEK	L		
Material List	Equipment	Part Description	mu. Limperson	de mounte la	TY Neede	d				
A) COMPL	ETE DDODE	B LOCKOLT /TAG		ask instruction	5	• • •	· .			
A) COMPL	ETE PROPE	R LOCKOUT / TAG	JUT PRO	CEDUKE						
B) PERFOR	M THE FOL	LOWING TASKS								1
C) IE ANV I	JISC DED A N	ICIES ARE FOUND I	NANAEDI A	TELV CONT	ACT VOI	In clu	rni (ice			
; ;	JIJCKELYK	ICIES ARE FOUND I	MINIEDIA	HELF CONTA	aci roc	JK 201	EKVISC	JK.		ļ
1)	CHECK EM	MISSION STACK FO	R LEAKS,	WARE OR VI	BRATIO	NS.				į
2)	CHECK EM	IISSION PUMP ROC	IM EOR I	PROPER TEM	ואוואר) פו	CED NA	ONTHS:	`		
-/	CITECH EN	IISSION TOWN ROC	JWI I OK I	KOI EK I EN	II. CANTIN	LIX WI	, כחוואוכ	,		
3)	HEATERS A	AND PUMP PITS FO	R EXCES	S WATER.						
4)	CHECK PO	ND LEVEL (NO MO	RE 15" B	ELOW BAIL)						İ
5)	CHECK KA	ISER COMP ROOM	, HEATER	, OIL AND F	LOOR, V	VATER	, FILTER	RS CLEAN A	S NECESSA	ARY.
6)	CHECK BO	ND SILO AND WAT	CH FOR	PROPER CYC	CLE		FILL		BLOW	
										Ì
										į.
REVISIONS: NEW 09/13/	/11 PFO #*	13/								
14544 03/13/	TI NEQ#	134								

								Mar Addition At			
PM Code	Job Type										
5800-001	PM										
	-					Descriptio	on				
M - 1ST SH	HIFT - OIL -	DUST	COLLECTOR	RS 1,	2,5,6,1	2,13,17,	19 G	REASING - Y	NK1		
Cost Code	Equipment	D	escription	L	ocation	Assigne	ed to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
44	M5800	ENVIR	ONMENTA	L		Α		MONTHLY	1	MONTH	
Material List	Equipment	Part	Description	Bin	QTY A	vailable	QTY	Needed			
		or the second			Tas	k Instruct	tions				
B) IF ANY C) PERFOR	DISCREPAN M THE FOL	CIES A		IMN	IEDIAT	ELY COI					ARINGS ON #
A) COMPL B) IF ANY C) PERFOR 1) GI DUST COL 2) GF 3) GF	DISCREPAN M THE FOL REASE THE I LECTOR (M REASE THE I	CIES A LOWIN PILLO 5801) PILLO PILLO	RE FOUND NG TASKS DW BLOCK DW BLOCK	IMM BEAF BEAF	MEDIAT RINGS I RINGS I	ELY COI FOR THI FOR THI	E BLO	OWER AND	THE 2	AUGER BE	ARINGS ON #' TOR (M5802) ARINGS ON #!
A) COMPL B) IF ANY C) PERFOR 1) GI DUST COL 2) GI 3) GI DUST COL 4) GF	DISCREPAN M THE FOL REASE THE : LECTOR (M REASE THE : REASE THE : LECTOR (M	CIES A LOWIN 2 PILLO 5801) 2 PILLO 5805) 2 PILLO	ARE FOUND NG TASKS DW BLOCK DW BLOCK DW BLOCK	IMM BEAF BEAF	MEDIAT RINGS I RINGS I RINGS I	FOR THI FOR THI FOR THI	E BLO E BLO E BLO	OWER AND OWER ON #	THE 2 F2 DUS THE 2	AUGER BE ST COLLEC AUGER BE	TOR (M5802)
A) COMPL B) IF ANY C) PERFOR 1) GF DUST COL 2) GF DUST COL 4) GF DUST COL 5) GF DUST COL 5) GF	DISCREPANEM THE FOL REASE THE MEASE	CIES A LOWIR 2 PILLO 5801) 2 PILLO 5805) 2 PILLO 5806) 2 PILLO 5812)	ARE FOUND NG TASKS DW BLOCK DW BLOCK DW BLOCK DW BLOCK	IMM BEAF BEAF BEAF BEAF	MEDIAT RINGS I RINGS I RINGS I	ELY COI FOR THI FOR THI FOR THI	E BLO E BLO E BLO E BLO	OWER AND OWER AND OWER AND OWER AND	THE 2 F2 DUSTHE 2 THE 2 THE 2	AUGER BE ST COLLECT AUGER BE AUGER BE AUGER BE	TOR (M5802) ARINGS ON #

5819-00° BW - 2NI	1 PM	1										
BW - 2NI												
BW - 2NI					Description	on						
	D SHIFT - M	IW - # 19	DUST CO	LLECTO	R MECHAN	IICAL CHE	CK - EV	/EN				(d)
Cost Code	Equipment		D	escriptio	on] !	ocation.	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
79	M5819	# 19 SAI 90,000 C		1 DUST	COLLECTO	PR		А	BIWEEKLY	2	WEEK	
Material Li	st Equipme	nt Part	Description	Bin Q	TY Available	QTY Need	ed					
					Task Instruc	tions						
5819-001												
)	CHECK A	UGER EA		(CWC#	# BEVE3081)		ST CHA	AIN FOR TE	NSION			
2)	_ CHECK A	UGER SF	IEAVES AN	D SPRO	OCKET FOR	WEAR						
	_ CHECK B	LOWER F	BELTS FOR	TENSIC	ON AND WE	EAR						
3)			ND MOTO	R SHE	AVES FOR W	VEAR						
3) 4)	_ CHECK BI	.OWER A									1	
	_			R BOC	ots (Seals)	FOR WEA	R					
4)	_			ER BOC)TS (SEALS)	FOR WEA	R					

PM Code	Job Type											
5819-002												
contable Alest colored units					Description	on						
W - 1ST S	SHIFT - MW	-#190	OUST COLL	ECTC	OR MECH. CHE	CK			***************************************			
Cost Code	Equipment			Descr	ription		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
79	M5819	# 19 SA 90,000		M DL	JST COLLECTO	DR		Α	WEEKLY	1	WEEK	
Material Lis	st Equipmer	t Part	Description	Bin	QTY Available	QTY Need	ed	<u> </u>		1	1	1
			ENTYRENNESS CHARLES AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND		Task Instruc	tions						
)	_ CHECK D				MEDIATELY CO · ND OF AUGER		OK JOF	KVISOK				
(2) (3) (4) (5) (7)	CHECK B CHECK C CHECK B CHECK A CHECK B CHECK B	RIVE BE EARING HAIN OI EARING IR LOCK ELTS ON EARING	LTS ON EAR ON EST EN N WEST EN ON WEST (S (TWO) FO I BLOWER I S TEMP ON	ST EN ID OF END OR N FOR I	ND OF AUGER F AUGER FOR F AUGER FOR OF AUGER IOISE OR VIBR LOOSE OR DA	NOISE OR TIGHTNES: ATION MAGE OR	CHATTE S NOISE (I	R BEVE0850)				
(i) (ii) (ii	CHECK B CHECK C CHECK B CHECK A CHECK B CHECK B CHECK S	RIVE BE EARING HAIN OI EARING IR LOCK ELTS ON EARINGS	LTS ON EAR ON EST EN N WEST EN ON WEST (S (TWO) FO I BLOWER I S TEMP ON	ST EN ID OF END OR N FOR I BLO	ND OF AUGER F AUGER FOR F AUGER FOR OF AUGER IOISE OR VIBR LOOSE OR DA	NOISE OR TIGHTNES: ATION MAGE OR	CHATTE S NOISE (I	R BEVE0850)				
)))))	CHECK B CHECK C CHECK B CHECK A CHECK B CHECK B CHECK S	RIVE BE EARING HAIN OI EARING IR LOCK ELTS ON EARINGS	LTS ON EAR ON EST EN N WEST EN ON WEST (S (TWO) FO I BLOWER I S TEMP ON OM DUST (ST EN ID OF END OR N FOR I BLO	ND OF AUGER F AUGER FOR F AUGER FOR OF AUGER IOISE OR VIBR LOOSE OR DA	NOISE OR TIGHTNES: ATION MAGE OR	CHATTE S NOISE (I	R BEVE0850)				
)))))	CHECK B CHECK C CHECK B CHECK A CHECK B CHECK B CHECK S	RIVE BE EARING HAIN OI EARING IR LOCK ELTS ON EARINGS	LTS ON EAR ON EST EN N WEST EN ON WEST (S (TWO) FO I BLOWER I S TEMP ON OM DUST (ST EN ID OF END OR N FOR I BLO	ND OF AUGER F AUGER FOR F AUGER FOR OF AUGER IOISE OR VIBR LOOSE OR DA	NOISE OR TIGHTNES: ATION MAGE OR	CHATTE S NOISE (I	R BEVE0850)				
(i) (i) (ii) (iii) (iii) (iii) (iii) (iii) (iii)	CHECK B CHECK C CHECK B CHECK A CHECK B CHECK B CHECK S	RIVE BE EARING HAIN OI EARING IR LOCK ELTS ON EARINGS	LTS ON EAR ON EST EN N WEST EN ON WEST (S (TWO) FO I BLOWER I S TEMP ON OM DUST (ST EN ID OF END OR N FOR I BLO	ND OF AUGER F AUGER FOR F AUGER FOR OF AUGER IOISE OR VIBR LOOSE OR DA	NOISE OR TIGHTNES: ATION MAGE OR	CHATTE S NOISE (I	R BEVE0850)				

PM Cod	10	Joh Turca											
	-	Job Type											
5819-00	07	AUT											
						Description							
M - BOI	ВМ	EACHAM	- # 19	DUST COLL	ECTO	OR PIPE BUILD	UP R	EVIEW			,		
Cost Code	Eq	uipment		De	script	ion		Location	Assigned to	Class	Freq	UOM	Deactivated
79	М		# 19 SA 90,000		I DU	ST COLLECTO	R		Α	MONTHLY	1	MONTH	
Material L	List	Equipme	t Part	Description	Bin	QTY Available	QTY	Needed		A		The second secon	
						Task Instruc	tions						
		LETE PRC	PER LO	CKOUT / TA	\GO!	UT PROCEDUF	RE						
A) CO	MP					UT PROCEDUR		ACT YOU	r Supervi	SOR.			
A) CO B) IF A	MP	DISCREP	ANCIES		D IM			ACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			
A) CO B) IF A C) PER	MPI	DISCREP	ANCIES OLLOW	ARE FOUN	D IM			ACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			
A) CO B) IF A C) PER 1) (MPI ANY RFOI	DISCREP RM THE F N ACCES	ANCIES OLLOW	ARE FOUN	D IM	IMEDIATELY C		ACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			
B) IF A C) PER 1)(2)(MPI ANY RFOI OPE	DISCREP RM THE F N ACCES CK FOR I	ANCIES OLLOW 5 DOOF	ARE FOUN /ING TASKS RS ON #19 I	D IIV DC P IN	IMEDIATELY C		ACT YOU	R SUPERVI	SOR.			

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan **CWC Textron**

I. BACKGROUND

Emission Unit

Description:

Knockoff operation #227, Spiral Elevator #228 and Rocker Barrel Blast

Identification:

EU-MP-RBB

Pollution Control Equipment

Dust Collector Unit #1, Dust Collector Unit #13, Dust Collector Unit #6

Facility:

CWC Textron

1085 West Sherman Blvd Muskegon, MI 49441-3588

Applicable Regulation, Emission Limit, Monitoring Requirements

Renewable Operating Permit No: MI-ROP-B1909-2019a

Emission Limits

Particulate Matter:

0.01 lbs per 1,000 lbs of exhaust gases. Rule 336.1331 (1)(c)

Opacity:

10% opacity based on 6-minute average, Rule 1301 (1)(c)

Monitoring Requirements:

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of production.

Record the static pressure drop across the fabric filter dust collectors once per

day.

Record the reading from the particle sensors on each of the fabric filter dust

collectors once per day.

Control Technology

Pre-control potential emissions for PM are more than 100 tons annually. The efficiency rate for the fabric filter dust collectors units #1, #6 and #13 is over 99%.

II. MONITORING APPROACH

Indicator

Installed static pressure drop monitors with readings taken once per day

Installed particle sensor system indicator reading recorded once per day

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of operation.

Indicator Range

An excursion is defined as excessive opacity for a duration exceeding two hours or if the pressure drop across the dust collectors deviate from their normal ranges (DC#1 7"-12", DC#6 7" - 12" and DC#13 8"-12") or if particle sensor readings deviate from the limits established within the preventative maintenance plan.

III. PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

Data Representativeness Measurements are made each day of production

Verification of Operational

Status Calibration of pressure gauges

QA/QC Practices and Criteria Routine preventative maintenance

Monitoring Frequency Each day of production

Measurements are made at dust collector #1, #6 and #13 and are recorded daily Data Collection Procedure

on the written daily environmental checklist form.

IV. JUSTIFICATION

Rationale for Selection of Performance Indicator

Opacity was selected as a performance indicator of good operation and maintenance of the dust collection system.

When the static pressure drop and particle sensors are all operating within the required ranges, there will be zero or minimal opacity. However, opacity excursions do not necessarily represent PM emission violations and are usually associated with startup and shutdown procedures.

The selected ranges of the monitoring systems have historically indicated good system performance and particulate control.

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan CWC Textron

I. BACKGROUND

Emission Unit

Description: ACS sand system which contorls emissions from the sand cooler, sand tower,

sand muller, the sand basement and elevators #18 and #23.

Identification:

EU-ACS-SAND

Pollution Control Equipment

Dust Collector Unit #19

Facility:

CWC Textron

1085 West Sherman Blvd Muskegon, MI 49441-3588

Applicable Regulation, Emission Limit, Monitoring Requirements

Renewable Operating Permit No: MI-ROP-B1909-2019a

Emission Limits

1110. WI-101-B1909-2019a

Particulate Matter:

0.10 lbs per 1,000 lbs of exhaust gases. Rule 336.1331 (1)(a)

Opacity:

20% opacity based on 6-minute average, except for one 6 minute average per

hour of not more than 27% opacity, Rule 301

Monitoring Requirements:

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of production.

Record the static pressure drop across the fabric filter dust collectors once per

day.

Control Technology

Pre-control potential emissions for PM are more than 100 tons annually. The efficiency rate for the fabric filter dust collector unit #19 is over 99%.

II. MONITORING APPROACH

Indicator Installed static pressure drop monitors with readings taken once per day

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of operation.

Indicator Range An excursion is defined as excessive opacity for a duration exceeding two hours

or if the pressure drop across the dust collector deviates from its normal range of

3"- 7".

III. PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

Data Representativeness Measurements are made each day of production

Verification of Operational

Status

Calibration of pressure gauges

QA/QC Practices and Criteria Routine preventative maintenance

Monitoring Frequency

Each day of production

Data Collection Procedure

Measurements are made at dust collector #19 and are recorded daily on the written daily environmental checklist form.

IV. JUSTIFICATION

Rationale for Selection of Performance Indicator

Opacity was selected as a performance indicator of good operation and maintenance of the dust collection system.

When the static pressure drop is operating within the required ranges, there will be zero to minimal opacity. However, opacity excursions do not necessarily represent PM emission violations and are usually associated with startup and shutdown procedures.

The selected ranges of the monitoring systems have historically indicated good system performance and particulate control.

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan CWC Textron

I. BACKGROUND

Emission Unit

Description:

Cupola #1, which is the West Cupola and includes charging operations.

Identification:

EU-WEST-CUPOLA-1

Facility:

CWC Textron

1085 West Sherman Blvd Muskegon, MI 49441-3588

Applicable Regulation, Emission Limit, Monitoring Requirements

Renewable Operating Permit No: MI-ROP-B1909-2019a

Emission Limits

Particulate Matter:

0.15 lbs per 1,000 lbs of exhaust gases. Rule 336.1331 (1)(a)

Opacity:

20% opacity based on 6-minute average, except for one 6 minute average per

hour of not more than 27% opacity, Rule 301

Monitoring Requirements:

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of production.

Record the pressure drop at the high energy venturi scrubber and demister

separator system once per day.

Record the water pressure rate to the high energy venturi scrubber system once

per day.

Control Technology

Pre-control potential emissions for PM are more than 100 tons annually. The efficiency rate for cupola emission scrubber system exceeds 99%.

II. MONITORING APPROACH

Indicator

Installed high energy venturi scrubber and demister system with pressure drop

monitors with readings taken once per day

Installed water line in the emission control system with a pressure indicator

recorded once per day

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of production.

Indicator Range

An excursion is defined as excessive opacity for a duration exceeding two hours, the pressure drop across the venturi deviates from it's normal range 30"- 56" psi during blasting, the demister pressure drop deviates from its' normal level or 0" -

3" psi

III. PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

Data Representativeness Measurements are made each day of production

Verification of Operational

Status Calibration of pressure gauges

QA/QC Practices and

Criteria Routine preventative maintenance

Monitoring Frequency Each day of production

Measurements are made at the venturi scrubber, demister separator and the

emissions room and recorded daily on the written daily environmental checklist

Data Collection Procedure form.

IV. JUSTIFICATION

Rationale for Selection of Performance Indicator

Opacity was selected as a performance indicator of good operation and maintenance of the cupola emission system

When the venturi scrubber, demister separator and the water flow line are all operating within the required ranges, there will be minimal opacity. Particulate emission test results historically indicate that the emission rate s well below the particulate limit when the stack opacity is at or below 20%. However, opacity excursions do not necessarily represent PM emission violations and are usually associated with startup and shutdown procedures.

The selected ranges of the monitoring systems have historically indicated good system performance and particulate control.

Performance Testing

Stack testing for particulate conducted on September 12, 2017 indicates that when the performance indicators are within their ranges, particulate emissions are well below the emission requirements of the permit.

Compliance Assurance Monitoring (CAM) Plan **CWC Textron**

I. BACKGROUND

Emission Unit

Description: Casting shakeout and return sand system.

Identification: **EU-SHAKEOUT**

Pollution Control Equipment Dust Collector Unit #6, Dust Collector Unit #17 and Dust Collector Unit #20

Facility: CWC Textron

> 1085 West Sherman Blvd Muskegon, MI 49441-3588

Applicable Regulation, Emission Limit, Monitoring Requirements

Renewable Operating Permit No: MI-ROP-B1909-2019a

Emission Limits

Particulate Matter: 0.10 lbs per 1,000 lbs of exhaust gases. Rule 336.1331 (1)(a)

Opacity: 20% opacity based on 6-minute average, except for one 6 minute average per

hour of not more than 27% opacity, Rule 301

Monitoring Requirements:

A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of production.

Record the static pressure drop across the fabric filter dust collectors once per

Record the particle sensor reading at the fabric filter dust collector #6 once per

day.

Control Technology

Pre-control potential emissions for PM are more than 100 tons annually. The efficiency rate for the fabric filter dust collectors unit #6, #17 and #20 is over 99%.

II. MONITORING APPROACH

Indicator Installed static pressure drop monitors with readings taken once per day

Installed particle sensor reading taken once per day on Dust Collector Unit #6 A non-certified visual emissions (Opacity) observation will be conducted daily on

days of operation.

Indicator Range

An excursion is defined as excessive opacity for a duration exceeding two hours or if the pressure drop across the dust collector units deviates from their normal ranges (DC#6 7" - 12", DC#17 7" - 12", DC#20 "3 - 7") or if DC#6 particle sensor readings deviate from the limits established within the preventative maintenance plan.

III. PERFORMANCE CRITERIA

Data Representativeness

Measurements are made each day of production

Verification of Operational

Status

Calibration of pressure gauges

QA/QC Practices and Criteria Routine preventative maintenance

Monitoring Frequency

Each day of production

Measurements are made at dust collector #6, dust collector #17 and dust

collector #20 and are recorded daily on the written daily environmental checklist

Data Collection Procedure

form.

IV. JUSTIFICATION

Rationale for Selection of Performance Indicator

Opacity was selected as a performance indicator of good operation and maintenance of the dust collection system.

When the static pressure drop is operating within the required ranges, and the particle sensor device on DC#6 has not deviated from its established limit, there will be zero to minimal opacity. However, opacity excursions do not necessarily represent PM emission violations and are usually associated with startup and shutdown procedures.

The selected ranges of the monitoring systems have historically indicated good system performance and particulate control.



ISO 14001 PROCEDURE MANUAL

Document name: Fugitive Emissions Dust Control Plan

Date: April 27, 2018

Rev: 3

Document no. 8.1-5 Page 1 of 2

Primary Approval:
EHS Manager
Secondary Approval:
Integrated Supply Chain Manager
Secondary Approval:
Operations Manager
Secondary Approval:
Technology Manager

I Purpose

The purpose of this procedure is to provide for a system and instructions, and to assign responsibilities for a Fugitive Dust Control Program.

II Application

This procedure applies to the company's activities, products, and services that can interact with the environment; whether they are carried out or generated in-house, purchased or subcontracted.

III Responsibility and Authority.

The EHS Manager is responsible for collecting and coordinating information regarding the fugitive dust control plan.

IV Procedure

1. CWC will establish and implement an internal set of guidelines for a Fugitive Dust Control Program.

VI Fugitive Dust Control Program

- A. The storage piles are created and maintained with a front-end loader. Care shall be exercised during this work to minimize the quantity of fugitive dust created.
- B. There is one storage pile of foundry refuse sand located under the west end of the crane runway. The normal maximum size of this pile is 40 feet wide x 30 feet high x 40 feet long..

2. Other Refuse Sources

A. Slag from the desulfurizing operation will be collected in storage pile on east end of the crane way as it is generated. This material shall be loaded out to the landfill on a timely basis.



ISO 14001 PROCEDURE MANUAL

Document name: Fugitive Emissions Dust Control Plan

Date: December 21, 2017

Rev: 2

Document no. EOP8.1-5

Page 2 of 2

B. Bags of dust from dry collectors will be carefully placed in roll off hoppers to prevent spillage. Any spillage of this material will be cleaned up immediately.

3. Roads and Traffic Areas

- A. All paved roads will be swept on a weekly basis or as needed.
- All sand spillage on paved roads from refuse loading operations shall be removed as necessary.
- C. All dirt, sand, and other foreign material deposited on paved roads from vehicles from unpaved areas will be removed as necessary.
- All material spillage from incoming and outgoing delivery trucks on paved roads will be removed as necessary.

4. Loading Out of Refuse Material

- A. The free fall distance from the front-end loader into the trucks will be kept to a minimum.
- B. The front-end loader operator shall be directed to avoid overfilling the bucket of the loader to prevent spillage when transporting and loading materials onto trucks.

5. Inspection and Record Keeping

- A. The EHS Manager or a designate shall make a weekly inspection and maintain a record of these inspections and are documented on the daily environmental check sheet (811.001).
- B. Any deviations of this policy shall be documented and forwarded to the EHS Manager.

ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS:

Daily Environmental Check Sheet (811.001)

SRN: B1909

Section Number (if applicable):

80

PART C: SOURCE REQUIREMENT INFORMATION ids District

Answer the questions below for specific requirements or programs to which the source may be subject.

C1	(including those identified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install and other equipment that have not yet been incorporated into the ROP) are required to be reported in MAERS. Are there any emissions and associated data that have <u>not</u> been reported in MAERS for the most recent emissions reporting year? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the emission unit(s) that was/were not reported in MAERS on an AI-001 Form. Applicable MAERS form(s) for unreported emission units must be included with this application.	☐ Yes	⊠ No
C3	(40 CFR Part 82)	☐ Yes	⊠ No
C3	(Section 112(r) of the Clean Air Act Amendments, 40 CFR Part 68) If Yes, a Risk Management Plan (RMP) and periodic undates must be submitted to the USERA	Yes	
C4	rise an aparated raw been submitted to the USEPA?	☐ Yes	⊠ No
	changes the potential to emit (PTE) for criteria pollutant (CO, NOx, PM10, PM2.5, SO ₂ , VOC, lead) emissions? If <u>Yes</u> , include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or POP revision and/or potential)	⊠ Yes	□ No
	an Al-001 Form. If No, criteria pollutant potential emission calculations do not pood to be included.	1	
C5.	rido tillo stationally source added or modified equipment since the lest DOD		
	Clean Air Act?	Yes	□No
	If <u>Yes</u> , include potential emission calculations (or the PTI and/or ROP revision application numbers or other references for the PTE demonstration) for the added or modified equipment on an AI-001 Form. Fugitive emissions <u>must</u> be included in HAP emission calculations. Are any emission with the definition of the PTI and/or ROP revision application.		
C6.	the specific emission units subject to the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR)? If Yes, identify	☐ Yes	⊠ No
C7.	Are any emission units subject to the federal Acid Rain Program? If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to the federal Acid Rain Program on an Al-001 Form.		 ⊠ No
	is an Acid Rain Permit Renewal Application included with this application?	□ Vaa	
C8.	Are any emission units identified in the existing ROP subject to compliance assurance monitoring		⊠ INU
	If <u>Yes</u> , identify the specific emission unit(s) subject to CAM on an Al-001 Form. If a CAM plan has not been previously submitted to EGLE, one must be included with the ROP renewal application on an Al-001 Form. If the CAM Plan has been updated, include an updated copy.	⊠ Yes	□ No
	Is a CAM plan included with this application? If a CAM Plan is included, check the type of proposed monitoring included in the Plan: 1. Monitoring proposed by the source based on performance of the control device, or 2. Presumptively Acceptable Monitoring, if eligible	⊠ Yes	□No
29.	Does the source have any plans such as a malfunction abatement plan, fugitive dust plan, operation/maintenance plan, or any other monitoring plan that is referenced in an existing ROP, Permit to Install requirement, or any other applicable requirement?	∐	□No
110	If <u>Yes</u> , then a copy must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application.		
10.	Are there any specific requirements that the source proposes to be identified in the ROP as non-applicable?	☐ Yes [⊠ No
	If <u>Yes</u> , then a description of the requirement and justification must be submitted as part of the ROP renewal application on an Al-001 Form.		L
\boxtimes	Check here if an Al-001 Form is attached to provide more information for Part C. Enter Al-001 Form	n ID: AI- 0	001
Δeei	stance		

EGLE

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

	SRN: B1909	Continue North Continue No. 11.
Additional Information ID	SINIA. D 1909	Section Number (if applicable):
Al-cool		
Additional Information		
2. Is This Information Confidential?		
		☐ Yes ☒ No
Changed check mark in Box C-4 and C-5. New per September 20, 2021.	mit 69-21 was incorpora	ated into ROP permit B1909-2019 on
Also forgot to include HAP calculations sheet in orig Grinstern on 7/6/23 and also put into mail on 7/6/20	ginal submittal. Sheets s 23.	sent by electronic submission to EGLE Eric
		Page 1 of 1

SRN: B1909	Section Number (if annii-abla)
OINN. D1909	Section Number (if applicable):

PART B: APPLICATION SUBMITTAL and CERTIFICATION by Responsible Official

Identify the items that are included as part of your administratively complete application in the checklist below. For your application to be complete, it must include information necessary to evaluate the source and to determine all applicable requirements. Answer the compliance statements as they pertain to all the applicable requirements to which the source is subject. The source's Responsible Official must sign and date this form.

Listing of ROP Application Contents. Check the box for the items included with your application.										
	Completed ROP Renewal Application Form (and any Al-001 Forms) (required)		Compliance Plan/Schedule of Compli	ance						
\boxtimes	Mark-up copy of existing ROP using official version from the AQD website (required)		Stack information							
	Copies of all Permit(s) to Install (PTIs) that have not been incorporated into existing ROP (required) Acid Rain Permit Initial/Renewal Application									
\boxtimes	Criteria Pollutant/Hazardous Air Pollutant (HAP) Potential to Emit Calculations Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR) Information									
MAERS Forms (to report emissions not previously submitted) Confidential Information										
	Paper copy of all documentation provi	ded (requ	ired)							
\boxtimes	nal)									
	<u></u>									
	Dilance Statement									
This s	ource is in compliance with <u>all</u> of its applicable requi	ireme	nts, including those contained in the							
CVIORI	ig NOP, Permits to install that have not vet been inc	ornor	ated into that ROP and other	☐ Yes	⊠ No					
applic	able requirements not currently contained in the exis	sting F	ROP.							
Conta	This source will continue to be in compliance with all of its applicable requirements, including those contained in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.									
	ource will meet in a timely manner applicable require			⊠ Yes	□No					
The m	ethod(s) used to determine compliance for each ann	diaah	(a manusarian de 1877 - 1877 - 1878 -							
The method(s) used to determine compliance for each applicable requirement is/are the method(s) specified in the existing ROP, Permits to Install that have not yet been incorporated into that ROP, and all other applicable requirements not currently contained in the existing ROP.										
If any of the above are checked No, identify the emission unit(s) or flexible group(s) affected and the specific condition number(s) or applicable requirement for which the source is or will be out of compliance at the time of issuance of the ROP renewal on an AI-001 Form. Provide a compliance plan and schedule of compliance on an AI-001 Form.										
Name and Title of the Responsible Official (Print or Type)										
ROBERT MEACHAM - SR. ENVIRONMENTAL & FACILITY ENGINEER										
As a Responsible Official, I certify that, based on information and belief formed after reasonable inquiry, the statements and information in this application are true, accurate, and complete.										
	otation and information in this application ar	re tru	e, accurate, and complete.							
	let //hhan		7/6/2c	173						
Sig	nature of Responsible Official		Date							

EGLE

RENEWABLE OPERATING PERMIT APPLICATION AI-001: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This information is required by Article II, Chapter 1, Part 55 (Air Pollution Control) of P.A. 451 of 1994, as amended, and the Federal Clean Air Act of 1990. Failure to obtain a permit required by Part 55 may result in penalties and/or imprisonment. Please type or print clearly. Refer to instructions for additional information to complete this form.

	Section Number (if applicable):
ol oubmittal. Charte	ated into ROP permit B1909-2019 on
ol oubmittal. Charte	ated into ROP permit B1909-2019 on
ol oubmittal. Charte	
al submittal. Sheets s	sent by electronic submission to EGLE Eric

Hazardous Air Pollutants (HAP's) Cupola Metal							
0.575							
8.64							
13.77							
1.4							
0.003							
24.391							

Summary Sheet

Pounds of material that went through the

			Sand		450.001	108.801	266 000	27.77	45.516	1225 201	1223.001	26 665	20.02	389.812	503 431	1000	5/36.341	5736 321	120.0010	14099.893
s emissions		NA	Metais		44.000	44.023	3.024	700 70	41.034	16 273	0.410	0 238	24.07	20.147	5 0 2 5	220.0	64.658	64 679	01010	2/2.096
could be instended that went through the dust collectors and was not captured, count as stack emissions	Total Particulates Sand and Metallic's			Metallic's	203 030	200.300	269.024	SE SEO	000.00	1242 074	- 10:1: 1:	26.902	156 0E2	400.000	508.455	F004 000	2001.000	5801,000	44074 000	143/4.989
not captured		Filter	Efficiency		0 998	000:0	0.980	0000	0.00	666.0		0.998	0000	0.000	0.999	0000	0.333	0.999		
s and was	Zinc			0000	100.0	0.020	0.019	200	0.016	0000	0.000	9000	0.00	0.011	0 133	5	0.122	0 224	200.0	
st collector		Nickel			0.029	100	0.000	0.004		0.005	000	0.000	0.036	0000	0.002	0.00	0.020	0.022	0 181	5
rough the du		Manganese))		0.918	0 007	0.007	0.173	010	0.078	0000	0.002	1.095		0.000	0.534		0.551	4 224	177.1
that went th		Lead			0.002	0.007	0.007	0.007	0 001	0.007	0000	0.000	0.005	9000	0.000	0.020		0.064	0.168	
o material		Iron			42.825	0000	0000	20.630	10 117	10.14/	0 234	407.0	54.726	1 022	4.302	63.811	60 044	02.011	267.117	600
Spring		Copper	01		0.139	0.968	0000	0.193	0.045	0.0.0	000	000	0.164	9000	00.0	0.070	0000	0.00	1.642	
		Chromium Copper		00,0	0.108	1.157	0000	0.007	0 005	0.00	0000	200.0	0.109	0000	1000	0.021	0.002	0.020	1.433	
	3 6	# 0 0		•	-	7	u	C	c	,	12		13	17		8.	20	2 1	lotals	

From Dust collection including Pounds
275.096
ed 6.006
From Dust collection in collection Total Metal HAP's Tons Emitted Total Metallic's Emitted
Total Metal HAP's Emitted

PTE	Total PCS HAP's Emission Factor AFS	
129,325	2.13E-01	13.773
Tons	Pounds per ton	Tons of emissions

		Spray Paint HAP Pounds					277		270	t .				70
		Spray Paint	Ц.		468 75		0.59%		7050	2/20:				april 1
			15 oz sprav cans	2100 (0.00 -0.00	Pounds per year		Ethyl Benzene		Xvienes	2016				Total HAPS in pounds
	HAD Downda	20.00						-		1, 50,	103.17			103.17
	Diocal		14639	1,00	5 5	100	3.	400466 40	100.00.47	24.00	0.10%			g
			Gallons Purchased	Choose Carrie	Specific Gravity	Doi rode/Collon	1 00 100 00 10 1	Dougle per your	todico per de	Nonhtholono	ו אם אות ומובו וב		- 00 % 1 - t - t	2002. 12 John HAP'S in bounds
	Methanol HAP Pounds									2652 12	2002:12		2052 42	2002.12
	Methanol	50%	400	795	3	9	3	7652 12		100%			٤	2
		Callone D. rohogod	Callons r al ci ased	Specific Gravity		Founds/Gallon	Ċ	Founds ber vear		Methano			Total HAPS in pounds	
- C 0 0 0 1	TAP POUNDS								10.00	85.83 20.03	30.85	3	61.70	
orilo20	Sasonille	2			8	2.32	2005,05	3	/07	2	1%	2		
	-	Gallons Purchased	Spooific Cranit	Specific Gravity	Poinds/Gallon		Pounds per year		Banzone	חכו לכו זכ	Tert-butyl methyl ether		Total HAPS in pounds	•

Total Fugitive HAPS in Pounds Total Fugitive HAPS in Tons

2828.89	141
8	

Cupola Organics

	7 9411100		
	Toluene	Formaldehyde	Total
	Emission Factor		
6.39E-02	4.21E-02	2.76E-02	1
4.13	2.72	1.78	8.64
	6.39E-02	Benzene Toluene Emission Factor Emission Factor 6.39E-02 4.21E-02	Benzene Toluene Formaldehyde Emission Factor Emission Factor Emission Factor 6.39E-02 4.21E-02 2.76E-02

PTE

C4 !		4/11/23	
STACK	LACTION	1/11/1/2	
Otack	1 620110	4/11//3	

PTF	Total Metal HAP's Emission Factor	
129,325		0.575
Tons	Pounds per ton	Tons of emissions

PTE SUMMARY IN TONS BASED ON PTE MELTING OF 129,325 TONS/YEAR

				70	ran, Frantary	28 989 Dates Elberthin	Tree of the contract	JOA	3	XON		SOX	ć	;
			Totals	Į		28 989 Da	200100	37,133		28.792	V 20.0	0/5	1358.460	
		-	Sep Over	-				0.64		88.3				
			Oven Ces	F				60.0		- +	69.0	4717		
			Space Heat			0.23		0.14		2007	600	-		Course Course Street, Square,
		1 1 1 1 1	Chian cats, space Heat Oven Ges Temp Oven	_		0.057			333	94				
		Knoakadi	1	0.970		200								
		P. House		-				CIAN						
		Drill & Mills			100000000000000000000000000000000000000	7007								
		Tumblest Cut Off Saw Drill & Mill				ONO							-	
		Tumblest				2000								
		Sand Unload Bulk Bond Hand Grind		*			_		_					
		a Bulk Bond	0000	2					_					_
	Г		L MA											_
		1		THE PERSON NAMED IN COLUMN	_		****							
WEAR	-	Conveyors	11.04	A STATE OF THE STA				_						
,325 TONS	,	Pare C	900				4							
NG OF 129	-	Pin n	_	976	ì	12.0								
TIE SUMMART IN IONS BASED ON PTE MELTING OF 129,325 TONS/YEAR	ding Shakes			30.0		20.00	74 Startes 8.7					-		_
ASED ON	Mod Cor		-	166	A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR			~	0.0000		1000		_	
I CNS	harge: Metal P			50		906		0.2	2000	7	46.7.09	NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.		
OUMMAKE	Cupola Cupola Cherge Metal Pour Moid Couling Challeaus Charleaus			33		2		5			00			
				PM10, Filterable 22,33		5°	200000000000000000000000000000000000000	16.		TO STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PA	1440		0.0	
	Component	PM Primary		PM10, Filter		8		XON	eo.	Š	8		CEAD	